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Core Vadlues

At Fiying Cemant, core values are olways given importance, These valuss are not ondy
theoratical but in actual fact dolve deop in the hoorts of antire team

These values are reflected with in the
name of FLYING itself.

Focus) Initiatives

Taking initiative in incorporating
rmodarn technology to reducea
cost and to improve quality.

We belicve in
focusing on reducing
cost gnd improving
guality theraty

offering profit to our

sharehalders. N ew

4 We ara pioneer in using new
Leqdersl'“p s cnd shiaties Rorahe

cost effective and guality

cament manufacturing,
Our objective is o lead as o
cost effective competitor,

of cement industry at a

glebal level os well os the w GIObuI

We understond the demand @

naeds of paople within
Pakistan. .
We strive to be

reckoned with dignity

in global market,
You )

03

Flying Cement
cllways maintding
Youu first’ approach,
not only to please our
customer but alzo to
scitisfy our
shareholders.



V.1SIMVd ONIATA

! L
LR LY

NVLSIMVd ONIATL

04




The financial year 2023-24 has faced a number of challenges such as high inflation; heavy flooding, high
power tariff, high interest rate, low foreign exchange reserves and political instability which have affected
Country’s performance. Overall cement prices have sharply increased during the year. However,
margins have reduced due to escalating operational costs driven by increased fuel & power costs, high
inflation and rising finance costs. High operational costs remained significant challenges for the
Company throughout the year. Therefore, the Company followed rational approach to operate at
optimum level to mitigate exposure to uncertainties.

The economy continued to face challenges on account of rising imports, security issues, political
instability and high power tariff. Nonetheless, the Company is quite hopeful forimprovement in domestic
sales on account of Government spending on PSDP and mega projects in the coming year.

The overall sale of the company has increased in comparison with last year. The company has gross
sales of Rs. 6,172,885,950 as compared to Rs.5,729,080,532 of last year and profit after taxation has
decreased from Rs. 271,245,680 to Rs. 51,446,770 in the same period last year due to mainly abnormal
increase in the Wapda tariff and slowdown in the construction activity.

We are actively in the process of completion of new Line-ll of 9,000 TPD of Clinker, COD of which is
targeted by Financial Year 3rd quarter 24 —25.

The Company’s Board maintains continuous oversight over critical aspects, including adherence to the
Company's mission, vision and values, besides providing strategic guidance, and setting benchmarks for
the Management. In my role as the Chairman of the Board, | have witnessed the resolute commitment of
each member of the Board to strategic leadership, effective govermance, and prudent financial
stewardship. Their collective expertise has facilitated well-informed decision making, ensuring that our
organization remains agile, innovative, and responsive to the dynamic business environment.

The Composition of the Board is well balanced between executive, non-executive and independent
Directors. Corporate strategy and objectives have been set such as to align the Vision of the Company.
The Company complies with all the requirements set out in the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 with respect to the composition,
procedure and the meetings of the Board of Directors and its Committees.

In the end, | would like to thank all stakeholders for the trust they have posed in their Company without
which it would not have been possible for the Company to sail through these tough times without your
continued support.

(L

Kamran Khan
Chairman

Lahore
Dated October 03, 2024
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Credit Rating

Flying Cement Company Limited

A -

Long Term

Short Term

Rated by the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited
Rating as on : April 19, 2024

Rating Type Rating Rating Comments
Long Term A-{A Minus) High Credit Quality. Low Expeciation of credit risk.

The Capacity for timely payment of financial
commitments is considered strong. This Capacity
may, nevertheless, be vulnerable to changes in
circumsiances or in economic conditions.

Short Term A2(A Two) A Salisfactory Capacity for timely payment.
This maybe suscepiible in adverse changes

in business, economic or financial conditions,
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Culture at Flying

Flying Cement Company Limited thrives on a culture of collaboration and
shared values. Our team members actively support one another, fostering an
environment where knowledge is freely exchanged and communication is key.
We believe that every outcome, whether positive or negative, reflects our
collective efforts.

This belief system inspires each team member to contribute positively and
commit selflessly to our shared goals. We cultivate self-belief and respect for
one another, uphold integrity and passion in our actions, and maintain a
relentless drive for continuous improvement. Our collaborative spirit has been
instrumental in our success, allowing us to consistently excel in cement
industry.

At Flying Cement Company Limited, we stand by our motto: “As family we
deliver to attain our goals to grow.” This philosophy not only drives our
performance but also strengthens our bonds as a team, ensuring we remain

leadersinourfield.







Environment Protection Initiatives

AtFlying Cement Company Limited, our commitment to environmental protection is a fundamental aspect of
ouroperations. We are dedicated to pioneerng innovative strategies that not only enhance our business bu

also contribute positively to the planet

1. Embarking on a Sustainable Future

We have adopted a forward-thinking approach that integrates sustain ability into every facet of our
operafions. By embracing innovation and adapting to new technologies, we sirive to create a more efficient
and sustainable business model.

Key Initiatives

1. Advanced Technology Implementation
= The installation of cutting-edge bag fiiters has allowed us to significantly reduce emissions and

improve airguality
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2. Sustainable Development Goals

Our guiding principle, "Innovate, Renew, and Sustain," drives our commitment to aligning with global
sustainable development goals. We are focused on maximizing stakeholder value through the
implementation of best-in-class Environmental, Social, and Governance protocols.

3. Social Responsibility

We recognize our responsibility as a corporate citizen and are committed to investing in the betterment of
our country. Our efforts extend beyond compliance; we actively engage in initiatives that promote
environmental sustainability and community welfare.
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Key Highlights

For The Year 2023-24

In addition to the reported and comparable metrics, we highlight below
key figures for our shareholders

Sioen Delee fitl Brofiloss After Tox

2024 51
2023 271

_\-\-l'l.

2024 6172 |
2023 5.729

)
|

\

-

\

Total Assets ¢ Earning Per Share
PKR in million e PKR
s & ol “\I
2024 25361 | 2024 0.07
2023 22970 2023 0.39
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The guality policy of the cement is monitored through
the chemical laboratories located at the site installed
with latest instrumental analysis techniques directly
linked through PLC to control the process of
manufacturing automatically keeping lowest variation
brand from the required values/parameters laid by the
British Standards BS-12-1991.

Flying Cement Company is committed to produce high
quality Ordinary Portland Cement as per International
and British Standards to achieve customers'
satisfaction

The company is committed to abide by all applicable
legal and regulatory requirements and shall strive for
continual improvements including prevention of
pollution by establishing and monitoring of its Quality
and Environmental objectives.

The Chairman and Management are committed to
communicate and maintain this policy at all levels of
the company, and dachieve continual improvement
through teamwork.

The Company has quality assurance certificates from
Cement Research & Development Institute, Pakistan
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Vision
To be a premier quality cement manufacturing unit

engaged 1n nation building through the most efficient
utilization of resources

@ L
 Mission |
Successfully delivery quality cement by using innovative

practices with the ultimate goal of increasing the
satisfaction of our customers.

To minimize the cost of production by using

state-of-the-art technology and utilizing our experience in
increasing profits for our sharcholders.

17




Flying Cement Company Limited was incorporated as a Public Limitced Company on 24th
December1992. The shares ofthe Company are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The Company has mmmmpiuﬂ of Rs 8,000 mﬂliﬂn{ﬂﬂﬂ million ordinary shares of
Rs 10/~ cach) and the Company has paid up capital of Rs 6,948 million (694.8 million ordinary
share of Rs10/- each).

The principle activity Dfﬂﬁcmrwistu rrtcmufdtmmng, marketing and sale of cement.

Registered Head Office is located at 63-A Sher Khan Road, Lahore Cantt Lahorc. The

Manufacturing plant is located at 25km Lilla mtmchmgu Lahore- Islamabad Motorway,
Mangowal Districtkhoshab onanareaof 127 acres uppnmrnuteiy




Achieved Profitability,ip v v

the current financial Mnim;al'r:iaﬁ gearing ratio °

year UfI.RS_ 5!11 million et m@drﬁpqrgd to
fndu’ﬂﬁy-ﬂ!ﬂ’.ﬂ rage of Installed latest technology of
300 bag filter which reduces carbon

footprint of the company
i, s ! making it environment friendly.
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Building Bloeks
for Our Busmess

T e i — e
T

Incremental Revenue

Incremental Profit

Higher ROCE

Future Potential Opportunity

usiness Sustainability

Risk Mitigation

Changing Trends of the Customers

Latest Technologies

Regulatory Compliance

Strategic Alliances
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Stakeholder Engagement

The Company beleives in maintaining relationships based on trust
and collaboration with its stakeholders. Our stakeholders extend
valuable contributions to our growth and existence. Procedure for
stakeholders’ engagement includes effective communication, good
harmony, and compliance with laws & regulations.




o

Developing and sustaining long term relationships with our Distributors forms the key to our business
success Thelr expectations are focused on product quality and pricing.

Our sustainakle growth is olso attributable to engoging reputed and dependable suppliers & vendors ds
business partners for supply of raw material, industrial inputs, equipment, and machinery. We believe in
strategic relationships and have developed strong connections with top local and international vendors in
the industry.

Our commitment to complionce with lows and regulotions is evident from our Corporate and Legal teom's
continued efforts for efficient aond effective legal and regulatory conformity. The engagement includes
submission of periodic reports, communicating through letters and emails and responding to enguiries and
meetings as and whan required. Active engagement with regulators improves the level of complionce.

Company's main reason for existence s to bring about o positive change in the community. To pursue this
causa, the Company invest in the community. Its main areas of focus include Education, Literary Activities,
Health Core and Disoster Relief

Support of shareholders is critical in achigving the Company's objectives. The Company safeguards its
shareholders interest as its pime responsikility. Qur shareholders Interest revolves ground good returns,
profitability, growth, and regulatory complionceas. We respond to our shareholders’ expectations through
improvement in business mechanics, effective governance, and corporate reparting framewaork,

WMaintaining  tronsparency between the Company ond its shareholders, Flying Cement website,
(www.flyfngcement.com] contains all the major financial information needed for investors decision-making in
d separate tab of JInvestor Relations™




Navigating Challenges: Flying Cement Company Limited's Response to Global Disruptions Since February
2022, the Russia-Ukraine conflict has significantly impacted economies worldwide, including Pakistan. As a
leading cement manufacturer, we faced numerous challenges due to disrupted global supply chains and
soaring inflation resulting from a commodities super-cycle. This situation led to increased costs for imported
matenals and, consequently, higher production expenses.

Resilience in Adversity

Despite these challenges, Flying Cement Company Limited has demonstrated remarkable resilience. By
adapting swiftly to the evolving global landscape, we not only weathered the storm but also achieved
sustainable profitability. Our commitment to serving our customers and supporting our employees and
communities has remained unwavering during these trying times.

Key Strategies for Value Creation

1. Driving Operational Efficiencies

We implemented measures to enhance operational efficiency, optimizing our processes to reduce costs
without compromising quality.

2 Caring for Our People and Communities

We prioritized the well-being of our employees, ensuring a safe and supportive work environment.
Additionally, we engaged in initiatives to support the communities affected by the economic downturn.

E, % Diversifying and Investing for Growth

We focused on diversifying our operations and making strategic investments aimed at maximizing
shareholder wealth. This proactive approach has positioned us for long-term success despite external
challenges.




at Flying Cement Company Limited

INSPIRING, MOTIVATING & COMPELLING:

At Flying Cement Company Limited, we are driven by ambition and innovation. We
approach our work with enthusiasm, bringing energy and creativity to achieve
unprecedented levels of performance. Our commitment to excellence sets us apart,
pushing us to reach higher standards in everything we do.

Accountability and Keeping Promises:

We take accountability seriously, delivering quality products and exceptional service
while adhering to requlatory standards and ethical business practices. Our focus is
on integrity and excellence; we believe in actions over words. We strive for
perfection in every aspect of our operations.

Competence:

We embrace diverse perspectives and remain open to change. Our agility allows us
to respond swiftly to the needs of our stakeholders, adapting our operations to meet

evolving demands and achieve our goals.




Respect

Respect for our customers, shareholders, and all stakeholders is at the core of our
business. We value their feedback and are committed to fulfilling their needs,
ensuring a collaborative relationship that fosters mutual growth.

Transparency About Our Products:

Flying Cement Company Limited is dedicated to conducting business with honesty
and integrity. We expect every employee to create value for our stakeholders
through transparency and accountability. As we continue to grow, maintaining the
highest standards of ethical behavior remains paramount.

Commitment to Integrity:

Adherence to our Code of Conduct is mandatory for all employees. This commitment
not only benefits our stakeholders—customers, communities, and
shareholders—but also strengthens our corporate culture. We continuously monitor
compliance, providing the necessary tools and information to ensure transparency
in all transactions and behaviors. Corrective measures are taken whenever
necessary to uphold our ethical standards.




Code
of Conduct

It is a fundamental policy of the Company to conduct it business with honesty,
integrity and in accordance with the highest professional, ethical and legal standard.
The Company has adopted a comprehensive Code of Conduct (Code) for the
members of the Board of Directors and Employees. The Code define acceptable and
unacceptable behavior provides guidance to directors [ Employees in specific
situation that may arise and foster a culture of honesty, accountability and high
standards of personal and professional integrity.
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Conflict of Interests

Each Director must avoid ony conflict of interest betwaen the Director and the Company, its associoted or
subsidiary undertaking(s). Any situation that invalves, or may reosonably be cxpected to involve, o conflict of
interest with the Company, should be disclosed promptly.

Corporate Opportunities

Directors ara prohibited from taking for thamsalvas parsonally, opportunities related to the Company's business:
using tho Company's property, infformation or position for personal gain of competing with the Company for
business opportunitios.

Confidentiality

Dwrectors must maintain confidantiolity of information entrusted upon ta them by the Compony and any other
confidential infarmation atout the Company and its associatod or subsidiary u:ld:}rtakil'lgl:sj that comes to tham,
axcapt when disclosura is authorized by the Chalrman of the Board or lk.‘ig{‘lll'f rmandatedd,

Honesty, Integrity and fair dealing

Directors must oct honestly ond fairly and exhibit high ethical stondards in degling with all
stokeholdars of the Company.

Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations

Directors shall comply with lows. rules ond regulotions applicable to the Company including but not limited to the
Companies Act 2017, Listing Reguiations of the Stock Exchanges and insider Traoding Lows.

Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations

Directors shall comply with laws, rules ond reguilations appiicable to the Company including but not irmitad to the
Compdnies Act 2017, Listling Regulations of the Stack Exchangeas and inshder Tradlng Laws,

Encouraging the Reporting of any Possible lllegal or Unethical Behavior

Directors should toke steps to ensure that the Company promotes ethical behovior;, encourages employees o
talk to supervisors, monogers ond other appropriate personnel when in doubt about the best course of oction ino
particular situation; ancouragss employaas to report viclation of laws, rules. ragulations, Company policias and
procedurss or the Compoanys Code of Conduct to appropnate personnel; ond informs employaes thot the
Compary will not allow any retaliation for reports mads in good faith.

Trading in Company Shares

Certoin rastrictions [ reporting requirernents opply to trading by the Directors in Company shares. Directors shall
make sure thot they remain compliaont with these stotutory requirements.

Compliance Procedures

Directors ehould disclose any suspected vielations of this Code promptly in the immediate subseguont meeting of
the Board of Directors.
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Conflict of Interests

employees | troinees must not engage in octivities or tronsactions which may give rise, or which may be
seen to hove given rise, to Conflict betwaen their personal interests and the interest of the Company,

Confidentiality and Disclosure of Information.

Employees [ trainees are expected to sofeguaord conficentiol informetion and must not, without authority,
disclose such information about the Company activities to the press, to any outside source, or to employee |
traoinees who arg not entitled to such information

Political Contribution

Mo funds or assets of the Company moy be contributed to any political porty or orgonization or to any
individual whe either holds public office or is a candidate for public office except where such a contribution is
permitted by low.

Bribes and Commercial Payments

An employee [ trainee must not give or receive bribes or other payments, which are intended to
mfluance o business decision or compromise independant [udgmant; nor must any amployee ,nr tramesa
aiva manay in order te abitain busingss for the Company, nor recoiva maonay for giving Campany
businass to an outside agancy.

Proper Recording of Funds, Assets, Receipts and Disbursements

All funds, ossets, receipts and disbursements must be properly recorded in the books of the Company.

Agreements with Agents, Sales Representatives or Consultants

Agrasments with agents, sales representatives or consultants should stote claarly the services to be parformead
for the Company, the amount to be paid and all other retevant terms and conditions.

Relations and Dealings with Supplier, Consultants, Agents, Intermediaries
and Other Third Parties

FCCL relations and daalings with E:upplic-r, cangultants, agonts, Intarmediarios and othar thind partiae shaould ot all
times ba such that FCCL's integrity dnd its reputation should not be dameaged I detalis of the relationship or
dealing were to become public knowledge.

Health, Safety & Environmental Policy

Every employas | troines at work must toke reczonabla care for the health and safoty of himsalf | hersalf and
othars including visitors who may ba offected by his | her acts of omission at work; ond co-opsrated in the
Company's efforts to protect the envirenment.

Smoking Policy

Srnoking ond exposure of workplace to tobocoo poses serious health hozords to the employees | troinees besides
potential risks of fire and explosions. Considering this. smoking is permitted only in the designoted 'Smoking Areos,
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Seat Belt Policy

As per the policy, it is mandatory for all FCCL employess [ trainess, contractors, visitors and il other persens to
fastenaost belts in the frant seats of the vehicls while travelling.

Other Employment, Outside Interests, Civic Activities

FCClLdoes not allow its omployees | troinees to toke ony part-time and/ or full-time second employment during
employess' | troiness’ engagement with the Company,

Unsolicited Gifts

Accapting gifts that might place on employes | trainee under chligation is prohibited, Employes III troines must
palitely but firmily decling any such offar and axplaln that in occordanca with the Company's instructions, they are
unable to accept the offar.

Family Connections and Employment of Relatives

&ny deolings between staff ond outside orgonizotion in which they hove o direct, indirect or fomily
connaction must be fully disclosed to the Manogemaent

Company and Personal Property

An amployes { trainee must not take or use Company property or the property of ancther employas [ traines
without penmission: nos must the employes [ troinee use Company's property for private purpose without the
Moncgement's permission.

Alcohol and Drugs

Alcohol in any form and the use of drugs, except undaer madical odvice, Is prohibited ot all locotions

Gambling

&ll forms of organized gambling or betting on the Cempany's premises is forbidden.

Rumor Mongering & Gossiping

Rurmor mongaring, porsuasive allegations, accusations and axaggarations with the moin purpose of nagatively
influsncing and manipulating the minds ond emations of the fellow employees [ trainees ore strictly prohibited.

Harassment

It iz the policy of the Company to promote a productive work environment and not to tolerate verbal or physical
conduct by any employes | traines that harosses, disrupts or interferes with onother's work performance, creates
an intinvidating, humilicoting, offensive or hostile environment,

Grievance Handling

FCCL strives to provide a fair and impartial process to its amployees [ trainees and ensure timely resolution of their
grievonce,

Whistle Blowing

Inorder to enhance good governance ond transparency, FCCL has intreduced o whistle blowing palicy, The policy
provides an avenue to employees [ trainees ond vendors to raise concerns ond report legal and ethical issues like
fraud, cormuption or any ather unlowiul conduct or dangars to the public or the environmeant

General Discipline

Every employes | trainoe must adhare to the Company's rules of sorvice and moks sure that he [ sha s familiar
with them.

Reporting Violations / Disciplinary Actions

Any violation of this code shall ba promptly reported to the Humaon Resources department by any employes |
trainaa having knowledge tharaof or having recsonabia baliaf that such a violation hos occurrad.
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Strengths

Strong Brand Recognition: Established reputation in the cement industry
enhances market presence and customer loyalty.

Well Diversified Fuel Mix & Efficient Operations: A diverse fuel portfolio
reduces dependency on any single source and promotes operational
efficiency.

Strong Financial Position: Robust financial health allows for investment in
growth and innovation.

Quality and Efficiency of Human Resources: Skilled workforce contributes
to high productivity and operational excellence.

Easy Access to Production Resources: Proximity to raw materials
streamlines the supply chain and reduces costs.

Trusted and Efficient Supply Chain: Established relationships with suppliers
ensure reliability and cost-effectiveness.

Geographically Diverse & State-of-the-Art Production Facilities: Modern
faciliies support high-quality production and adaptability to market
demands.

Self-Sufficiency in Electricity Requirements: Reduces vulnerability to
external energy supply fluctuations.
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Weaknesses

« Highly Fragmented Industry: Intense competition can lead to price wars and
reduced profitability.

+ Demand-Supply Gap and Overcapacity: Current market conditions may lead
to unsold inventory and lower margins.

« High Taxation and Duties: Increased financial burdens can impact
competitiveness and profitability.

« High Energy Costs and Inflation: Rising operational costs due to energy
prices and inflationary pressures.

« High Interest Rates: Elevated borrowing costs affect investmen t potential
and financial flexibility.

« Tough Competition in Local Market: Competitive pressures can limit market
share and growth opportunities.

« Low Exports of Cement: Limited international presence restricts revenue
diversification.

Opportunities

« Future Growth Potential: Expanding construction and infrastructure
projects can drive demand for cement.

« Focus on Cost Optimization: Streamlining operations and reducing costs can
enhance profitability.

« Export Opportunities Due to Fully Operational HUB Facility: Leveraging the
HUB facility can increase market reach and revenue streams.

« CPEC-Led Growth Opportunities: Infrastructure developments related to
the China-Pakistan Economic Corridor can create demand for cement.

« Future Growth Potential in Exports: Expanding into new international
markets can diversify revenue sources.

Threats

« Overcapacity Affecing Margins: Excess production capacity can lead to
decreased prices and profitability.

« Devaluation of Currency: Fluctuations in currency value can increase costs
for imported materials and impact profitability.

« Inconsistent Economic Policies: Uncertainty in government policies can
affect business planning and investments.

« Protectionism: Trade barriers may limit export opportunities and increase
operational costs.

« Rising Cost of Logistics: Increased transportation costs can erode margins
and competitiveness.

« High Cost of Financing: Elevated borrowing costs can hinder investment in
growth and innovation.

« Slashing PSDP Funds: Reductions in public sector development funds can
negatively impact infrastructure projects and cement demand.

« Rise in Coal Prices: Increasing fuel costs can significantly affect production

31 expenses and overall profitability.



Political Government  instability Timely odjustments are mode in the
and  macroeconomic organizational processes and policies in
policies advearzely response to actual or dnticipated
impact the Company's changes in Government policies,
business,

Management octively looks for the
chaonges in market conditions and strive
to act accordingly in response using
projections. forecosts and budgsting,
lssues relating to the Cemeant Industry
ore dealt with through the forum of
APCRMA

Economic Extensive competition, Monogement of the Company is
fluctuating interest octively looking for discovaring new
tates and price markets to increase the demand of its
hike in  maoterial products.
cost,

Cost reduction initiatives ta control the
costs and  also  efficient  inventory
randgemeant systams.

Socical Focus on Corporate A5 o socially responsible corporate
Social Responsibility, entity, the Company strives to develop
Donations and the communitias in which it operates by

development of ensuring compliance with cill
communities requiraments of CaR,

It donates genercusly to various social
ond charitable couses including hecith,
education and social sectors.




Technological Continuous
developrment of
information technology
infrastructures,

Environmental Environmental Footprint,
Global warming, Natural
disasters ete.

Legal Compliance with the
applicable regulatory
lcws.

The Company is continuously upgrading
itself in terms of technological
advancemeant so that the Company can
compete its competitor in a better way and
to provide best products to its customers

Ihe Company takes various steps to
protect the environment including
complionce with applicable environmental
standards.

We manage cur environmental
parfarmance through efficient use of
natural resources.

The Company remains alert to the changes
in applcable regulatary laws and ensure
compliance with relevont lows and
regulations through its professional team.




Competitive Analysis

(Porter's Five Forces)

Threat Of New Competition

Companies in the cement sector are firmly established
and the sector has high barriers to entry due to the
following reasons:

P High initial capital investment required;
P High setup cost; and
P Access to distribution channel is difficult

Threat From Substitute Products

There isn't any distinct substitute of cement.

Bargaining Power Of Customers

Generally, direct customers of cement manufacturers are distributors, dealers and
retailers who further supply to the end consumers. The market seems to have a
good appetite for the new-entrants because barriers to the entry as a cement
distributor, dealer and retailer are very low. The Company has a sound customer
base and enjoys a healthy and mutually beneficial relationship.

Bargaining Power Of Suppliers

The Company has a vendor selection process in place to ensure transparency
and fairness. Raw material is obtained through from Mines and Mineral
Department Whereas, other input materials dare purchased after market
research and negotiation to protect the Company’s interests.

Intensity Of Competitive Rivalry

Rivalry in the cement sector is intense and new
expdnsions can cause over supply.



Strategic
Objectives

To create value for all stakeholders, Flying Cement Company Limited focuses on four
strategic priorities that drive sustainable growth and cost efficiency. Every team
member plays a vital role in achieving these objectives, which are supported by
well-defined strategies and plans.




GF

Plan 1: Growing Local Market Share

* Objective: Enhance our presence in the local market.

* Strategies:
o Develop tailored business sirategies to strengthen our market position.
o Implement an expansion plan to increase capacity at Line-2 Plant by 2.7 MTPA to meet
growing cement demand.
o Operate warehouses near major consumption centers to maximize product penetration.

Plan 2: Efficiency
* Objective: Improve operational efficiency and reduce energy costs.

* Strategies:
o Continuously upgrade manufacturing facilities with new, efficient production lines.
o Install state-of-the-art Vertical Cement Mills at Line-2 Plant to enhance production efficiency.
o Optimize resource utilization to lower overall energy consumption.

Plan 3: Sustainable Development
" Objective: Committo environmental and social responsibility.

* Strategies:
o Utilize natural resources efficiently while delivering high-quality products at competitive
prices.
o Operate a 12 MW captive power project to provide clean energy and reduce reliance on
imported fossil fuels.

o Implement cutting-edge bag filter technology to minimize carbon emissions.
o Establish a 7.5 MW waste heat recovery plant to promote green energy solutions.

o Ensure compliance with National Environmental Quality Standards and actively contribute
to community well-being

Plan 4: HR Excellence
* Objective: Foster the development of our human capital.

* Strategies:

o Uphold core values and a comprehensive Code of Conduct to guide organizational
behavior.

o Develop structured processes for professional growth at all levels, emphasizing equal
opportunity and faimess.

o Define clear KPIs for each role, aligning with the company’s vision and values.

o Conduct anonymous climate surveys to gather employee feedback for continuous
improvement.

o Encourage skill enhancement through job rotation and professional development
opportunities.
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Key Priorities
Micro-Level Focus: Addressing Technological Risks

1.  Technological Obsolescence

i

oo

Commitment to Innovation: Flying Cement Company Limited prioritizes staying at the
forefront of technological advancements in the cement industry. We are actively upgrading
our manufacturing facilities to ensure we maintain our competitive edge.

Current Initiatives:

Installation of a new production line at our Khushab Plant.

Implementation of state-of-the-art Vertical Cement Mills to enhance production efficiency
and reduce operational costs.

2. Technological Innovation by Competitors

0

Dedicated Professional Team: We have established a dedicated team that focuses on
ensuring compliance with regulatory requirements while continuously monitoring
technological trends in the industry.

Resilience in Adverse Conditions: Our robust systems and software enabled ouremployees
to work effectively from home during challenging times, such as the Covid-19 pandemic and
natural disasters like floods. This adaptability has reinforced our operational continuity and
workforce productivity.




Key Opportunities

(Macro)

1. Identification of Alternate Sources of Coal
o Exploring new suppliers can mitigate risks associated with fluctuating fuel prices.

2, Adoption of Renewable Energy Projects
o Investing in renewable energy can reduce reliance on fossil fuels and enhance sustainability.

3. Cost Optimization Projects
o Implementing efficiency improvements can lower operational costs and increase margins.

4, Succession Planning
o Developing a robust succession plan ensures leadership continuity and retention of institutional
knowledge.

5. Rewarding High-Performing Employees
o Recognizing and incentivizing top talent fosters a mofivated workforce and drives performance.

6. Investments in Technology Upgrades and Capacity Expansions (Medium to Long Term)
o Modemizing equipment and expanding capacity can enhance productivity and meet growing
demand.

T- Building Relationships Along the Value Chain (Medium to Long Term)
o Sirengthening partnerships with suppliers, customers, and other stakeholders can enhance
operational resilience and market positioning.

8. Responsible Use of Raw Materials (Natural Capital)

o Prioritizing sustainable sourcing and efficient resource utilization can improve environmental
impact and reduce costs.
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Whistle Blowing Policy
Statement

The Management encourages whistle blowing culture in the organization
and has adopted a culture to detect, identify and report any activity which is
not in line with the Company policies, any misuse of Company's properties
or any breach of law which may affect the reputation of the Company. The
Company has adopted the best corporate policies to protect employee(s)
who report corporate wrongdoings, illegal conduct, internal fraud and
discrimination against retaliation.

The Company promotes transparency and accountability through
publication of accurate financial information to all the stakeholders,
implementation of sound, effective and efficient internal control system and
operational procedures.
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In aiddition to the Contribution of the Company in Economic development, the Company s also
aiming to improve the quality of life of the workforce and their families as wall as of tha local L.
community and society in which the Company is operoting: [ "L -

#
Y

In order to enrich the lives and to pave the way for sustainable living, the Company has taken
% qy different initiatives which are as follow;
-

® Education and capability development for employability
Sustainable and resilient infrastructure and mobility
Charity, Social welfare and reduction of poverty from society
Culture of environmental protection, health and safety

Reduction of carbon footprints

We aspire to positively impact Pakistan and to achiave this we undertook, but not limited
2 to. the following cetivities during the current year;

® Created job opportunities for the local community and provided the platform to A
train technical stoff.

®* Free medical facilities to the employees at site.
® Free fire-fighting service for nearby areas in extreme emergencies.
s Donationin shape of supply of food to nearby residents.

Provided food to needy and poor people of adjoining areas

® |nstalled latest technology of bag filter which reduces carbon footprint of the
company making it environment friendly.

* Promoting Sustainable Workplaces by improving employees’ lifestyles, encouraging
diversity and creating an environmentally friendly office

Provided financial assistance for the education of the employee’s children.

Tree plantation activity was performed in the nearby area of plant.






Corporate
Governadnce

Role and Responsibilities of the Chairman

The Chairmon is responsible for the Board's outhority, effective performonce, and high standards of governance. His role
is to ensure that the Boord os o whole is theroughly and constructively imvolved in determining ond establishing the
strategy and poficies of the Company. He also ensures that the decisions taken by the Board are in the best interest of
the Company. reprasenting the consensus of the Board.

The Chairman encouragaes the highast standards of intagrity and establishes good corporata govamance policios and
proctices. He ensuras that the Chisf Executive Officer and the Monogement teom successfully execute the plans and
policies decided by the Board,

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

Flying's Boord of Directors plays an effective role in managing strategic matters, establishing ond reviewing targets, and
finoincial ohjectives,

The Board fulfills its responsibilities in complianee with the legal fromework under the Companies Act. 2017, and odopts
corporate governance proctices for effective control The collective ocumen of the Boord is interprated into its dacisions
which forms the basis for Monagemeant to achiave its targats,

Role and Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer

The CEO lewmds the Management, builds an orgonizotional culture, ond is o role model for the entire Company.

The Chief Exacutive Officer is entrusted with the general managemeant of the Company's business and is responsible for
proposing and Elaveluping the C‘.Dmpun\l,r's strategy and overall commercial Dbjactivaﬁ_ in cloza consultation with the
Chairman and tha Board of Directors Ha is alzo responsibla for the managamant of the Company's daily operdtional
activities, strategic planning, budgeting, financial reporting, and sk management The CED is responsible for the
implementation of the plans and policies approved by the Board and its Committeas, in pursuit of the Company’s gools
and objectives, with the support of the Manogement team.

Evaluation of Board’'s Performance

As per the requirements of the Listed Compaonies (Gode of Corporote Governance) Regulations, 2019, the Board needs to
act on o welFversed bosis in the best interest of the Company and its stokeholders, Boord's performance evaluation is
aarriad out ta sat the tone ot the tup' ansuring tha right mix of knowledge, expertise, and skills to maximize parformonce,

Details of Formal Orientation Courses for Directors

Tha Company mokes appropriate arrangements te carry out on erientation for its Directors to acguaint them with the
Ragulations of the Code, applicabla lows, Company's oporations, their duties and responsibilitios enabling tham to
affactively govarn the affairs of the listed Compary. A formal erientation program is arrangad for every new membar of
the Board to provide better understanding of the Company's structure, business. targets and operations. This orlentation
provides a brief insight of the Company's core competencies, status of Company's affairs, Investments, summary of the
Company's mojor ossets, liobilities, noteworthy controcts ond maojor competitors. It also includes details of major risks
inchuding oll legol ond regulotory framework risks. oll mojor shareholders. suppliers, ouditors, ond other stokehoiders.

Governance Practices Exceeding Legal Requirements

The Camparny has always balievad in going the extra mile and stoying aheod of the curve. Aligning with this strategy, we
hova complied with the mandatory legal complioncas under all applicable rules, regulations, and standaords including
fisted Companias I{Enl:ia of Carporate Gnvarnance} Regulations, 2018, and tha Componias Act, 2017,






DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of your company have the pleasure to present before you the 317 Annual Report of your
company along with duly Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2024,

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The Fiscal year 2024 proved to be another challenging year for the world, and Pakistan in particular due
to significant geopolitical and macroeconomic uncertainty. During the first quarter of current year under
review, unprecedented flooding during the severe monsoon damaged the large scale infra-structure and
lives of people at large. Moreover, continued currency depreciation, higher inflation, and
unprecedented increases in interest rates have affected the cost of doing business, impacting both
demand and margins. The state of economy further deteriorated owing to rising prices of fuel and
energy, higher inflation, mounting foreign debt, depleting foreign exchange reserves and the Central
Bank's countering contradictory monetary policies regarding interest rate etc. The political uncertainty,
geo political situation coupled with the prolonged Russia-Ukraine conflict, pressure on consumer
demand and macroeconomic uncertainty had hampered the owverall business environment in the
country and the Company is not exceptional to that.

In short, the country is passing through unprecedented economic, financial and political turmoil which
have quite significantly impacted the overall business activities in the country and consequently, at that
of the Company. Consequent upon continuous increase in the cost of raw materials including coal, hike
in mark-up rates and electricity tariff as well as increase in government levies/taxes and unprecedented
devaluation of Pak-Rupee together with galloping inflation have impacted the financial results of the
Company.

Overall, the FY 2023 remained a tough year due to the magnitude of economic and other challenges and
the construction sector including the cement industry was unlikely to escape the impact.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The main objective of the company is to manufacture and sell Ordinary Portland Cement.
BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The production and sales volume figures for the year of your Company together with the comparative
figures are as under;

Particulars 2024 2023

Cement Production 321,500

Cement Dispatches 314,854

The data shows the change in the financial year 2024 both in terms of production and dispatched as
compared to last year,
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

A comparison of the key financial results of your Company for the year ended June 30, 2024 is as under:

Particulars 2024 2023
(Rupees in Thousand)

Sales revenue Gross

Less: Sales Tax/ Federal Excise Duty 6,172,886 5,729,080
Net: Sales revenue 1 656,258 1,485,554
Gross Profit 4,516,628 4,243,527
Operating profit 329,452 576,996
Profit before tax 183,099 446,513

Net Profit after tax EEER-ENI 369,743
Earnings per Share 51,447 271,246

0.07 0.39

During the year under review, the Company’s results of operations, financial position and net assets are
indicative of satisfactory financial condition. Throughout the year, we continued to show the satisfactory
position by putting the best efforts which is our fundamental priority and are proud of the impact of our
efforts. This performance of the Company is the reflection of strength of our team, businesses and
operations. During the year ended June 30, 2024, the Company remained focus on sustainability.

The company has gross sales of Rs. 6,173 (M) as compared to Rs.5,729 (M) of last year and profit after
taxation decreased from Rs. 271,245,680 to Rs. 51,446,770 in the same period last year.

EARNING PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share after taxation for the year was Rs. 0.07 (2023: Rs. 0.39). There is no dilution

effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, as the Company has no convertible dilutive
potential ordinary shares outstanding as of June 30, 2024,

DIVIDEND AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Board has proposed final cash dividend as Nil.,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions entered into are at arm'’s length basis which were reviewed and approved
by Audit Committee as well as by the Board of Directors of the Company in compliance with the PSX
Regulations of The Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and of the requirement of Section 208 of the
Companies Act, 2017,
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PRINCIPAL RISKS

Pakistan, having already been impacted by a myriad of geo-political, economic and political challenges,
will now also have to bear the social and economic cost of the damage caused by recent floods.
Moreover, expected global recession, economic instability and political uncertainty within the country
further dented consumer confidence resulting in decline in demand.

SUSTAINABILITY

Throughout FY 2023-24, FCCL has continued to demonstrate its strong commitment to its sustainability
agenda. The implementation of FCCL sustainability requirements and their compliance across the
Company's scope of operations, geographical presence and businesses are guided through FCCL holistic
Management System. A sustainable mindset is fully integrated into the Company’'s organizational
scheme, and the Company’s sustainability initiatives are in line with the Sustainability Council, which
acts as a governing body on matters relating to sustainability targets and performance. Furthermore, on
its Journey of Enriching Lives, FCCL is taking proactive measures to neutralize its emissions by adopting
nature and science-based solutions across its various operations,

IMPACT OF COMPANY'S BUSINESS ON THE ENVIRONMENT

Management of the Company is committed towards environmental protection and prevention of
pollution. The company has been dedicatedly playing its role towards the development of a better
society and a better future through continual improvement in the Environmental Management System.
The management is committed to introduce more environmental projects in near future as well.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Directors of the Company are committed towards long term measures in line United Nation's
Sustainable Development Goals. The Company strives hard to develop communities in which it operates
and is actively engaged in community services. The company meets all the food requirements of all its
employees free of cost and strives to take care of their families through provision of educational and
health services. It also sends its employees for religious pilgrimage each year to Saudi Arabia which are
selected through balloting. The company has also taken care of its nearest villagers in the time of floods
and natural disasters and works for poverty alleviation, to further protect the environment and move
closer to sustainable development.

WHISTLE BLOWING

The Company Whistle blowing encourages and enables all concerned to raise serious concerns within
the Company rather than overlooking a problem or 'blowing the whistle' outside. The Company is
committed to the highest possible standards of honesty, excellence, consistency, compassion, fairness,
integrity and accountability.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of Board of Directors is as under.

Description
Male
Female

Categorical Composition
Independent Directors

MNon-Executive Directors

Executive Director

Members of the Board of Directors and its Committees:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Kamran Khan

Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan
Mrs. Samina Kamran
Mr. Momin Qamar

Mr. Qasim Khan

Mr. Omar Maeem

Mr. Pervaiz Ahmad Khan

Chief Executive
Mr. Agha Hamayun Khan

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Omar Naeem
Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan
Mrs. Samina Kamran

HUMAN RESOURCE AND

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Pervaiz Ahmad Khan
Mr. Momin Qamar
Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan

CHAIRMAN REVIEW

Number of Directors

Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Chairman
Member
Member

Chairman
Member
Member

Non-Executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Executive Director
Executive Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Independent Director
Non-Executive Director
MNon-Executive Director

Independent Director
Executive Director
Mon-Executive Director

The Chairman’s review is enclosed and duly endorsed by Board of Directors.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has formed Code of Conduct to run its business operations effectively.
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Statement of Compliance duly reviewed by Board of Directors and Auditors is annexed.
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company will not pay any remuneration to its independent directors except approved meeting fee
for attending the Board and Committee meetings.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board of Directors has established an efficient system of internal financial controls, to ensure
effective and efficient conduct of operations, safe guarding of Company assets compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and reliable financial reporting.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

We are actively in the process of completion of new Line-11 of 8,000 - 9,000 TPD of Clinker, COD of which
is targeted by Financial Year 3rd quarter 24 — 25,

Howewver, despite the odds, the Company is well positioned for sustainable growth and profit
maximization through achieving economies of scale in production, keeping input costs in check through
use of optimum blend of local and imported coal and captive power generation. Maoreover, company’s
lower debt levels compared to peers in industry will also act as a hedge against volatility. We all are
highly motivated and willing to contribute enthusiastically on continuous basis. We assure, the
management will continue to work hard to provide long term sustainable growth and value for all its
stakeholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors of your Company review the Company’s strategic direction and business plans on a regular
basis. The Audit Committee is empowered for effective compliance of Code of Corporate Governance;

We are taking all necessary steps to ensure good corporate governance in your Company as required by
the Code. As part of the Compliance, we confirm the following:

a) The financial statements prepared by the management present fairly its state of affairs, the
result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.
b} Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the company.



c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d) International Financial Reporting Standards as applicable in Pakistan have been followed in
preparation of financial statements.

e] The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored,

fl  There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

g} There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as
detailed in the listing regulations,

h) Key operating and financial data for the last six years is annexed.

i) The Directors, executives and their spouse and minor children have made no transactions of the
Company's shares during the year, except those reported to the regulatory authorities and
disclosed in the annexed Pattern of Shareholding,

i) Reasons for significant deviations from last year's operating results have been compared in the
relevant section of the Directors’ report.

k) Information about taxes and levies is given in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

I) The company has planned to upgrade its production operations by enhancing production
capacity of its plant. The matter has been disclosed to shareholders in the due time and also has
been written in this directors’ report.

m) Detalls of number of Board and Committees meetings held during the year and attendance by
each director has been disclosed below:

Board Audit HR & R

Sr.No. Name Committee Committee

Meetin g
MRS Meetings Meetings

1 Mr. Kamran Khan 4 M/ A N/A
2 Mr. Momin Qamar 4 MN/A 2
'3 | Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan T & 4 T =
4 hr. Qasim Khan 4 M/A M/A
] Mrs. Samina Kamran 4 4 N/A
6 Mr. Omar Naeem 4 4 M/A
7 _Mr. Pervaiz Ahmad Khan e N/A 2
8 Mr. Agha Haméyun Khan 4 M/ N/
Total Number of Meetings Held 4 4 2

The leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend meeting due to their
preoccupation

n) The board has been provided with detailed in house briefings and information package to
acquaint them with the code, applicable laws, their duties and responsibilities to enable them to
effectively manage the affairs of the company for and on behalf of the shareholders.

BOARD EVALUTAION

As required under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance Regulations), 2019, the Board
conducts a self- evaluation of its performance on an annual basis. The Board of Directors believes that
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continuous assessment is critical in determining how effectively the Board has performed against the
objectives and goals that they have set for themselves. Based on the results of the evaluation, areas of
improvement are identified and corrective action plans are prepared and acted on

EVALUATION CRITERRIA OF THE BOARD

Apart from their mandatory job requirements, the performance of the Board of our Company is
evaluated regularly along the following parameters, both at individual and team levels:

Follow-up and review of annual targets set by the management.

Review of succession planning of management,

Contribution and interest in regard to improving health safety and environment, employment and
other policies and practices in the Company.

Effectiveness in bringing in a mix of gender, talents, skills and philosophical perspectives.

Ability to identify aspects of the organization’s performance requiring action,

L

b

The overall performance of the Board measured on the basis of above-mentioned parameters for the
year was satisfactory.

STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

An unfunded gratuity scherme has been maintained. Provision has been made in the financial statements
accordingly for permanent employees of the company.

AUDITOR’S

The Auditors M/s. Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co., Chartered Accountants are retiring at the
conclusion of forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible have offered their services for the
next term. The Auditors confirmed that they have been given satisfactory rating under the Quality
Control Review Program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and the firm is fully
compliant with the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics, as
adopted by the ICAP. The Audit Committee and the Board recommended their re-appointment.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2024 along with disclosures as required by the Code of
Corporate Governance is annexed,

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Material changes in the Financial Statements date and the reporting date have been duly incorporated
in Financials.
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies

(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

FLYING CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Year Ended June 30, 2024

This statement is being presentad to comply with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2018
(CCG/Regulations) for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, wheraby a listed company s managed in
compliance with the bast practices of corporate governanca. Flying Cement Company Limited ("the Company”) has applied thea
principles containad in the CCG in the following mannar:

1. The Iotal number of directors are 7 as per the following:

Description Mumber of Directors
a. Iake 06
b. Female 01
2. The composition of the Board is as follows:
Catagory Mames
Indepandant Directors Mr. Parvaiz Ahmad Khan
Mr. Omar Nasem
Mon-Executive Directors M. Kamran Khan
Mr. Yousaf Kamran Khan
Executive Directors Mr. Momin Qamar
Mr. Qasim Khan
Female Director (Non-Executive) Mrs. Samina Kamran

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, including Flying
Cement Company Limited.

4. The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it
throughout the company along with its supporting policies and proceduras.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Company, The
Board has ensured that completa record of particulars of significant policies, along with their date of approval or updating, is
maintained by the Company,

6. All the powers of the Board have bean duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the Board/
sharehoidars as empowerad by the relevant provisions of the Companias Act 2017 (the “Act”) and these Regulations.

7. The mestings of the Board were presided over by the Chalrman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board for this
purpose, The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and
circulating minutes of meeting of the Board

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for ramuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and
these Regulations,
9, All the directors are sither exempl or have acquired the prescribed certification under Direclors’ Training Program.

10. The Board has approved the appointment of the Chief Financial Offleer, Company Secretary and head of Internal audit,
including their remunaration and terms and conditions of employment, and complied with relevant requirements of Regulations.

11.The Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board,

1Z. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee:

Mr. Omar Nasam Chairman
Mr, Yousal Kamran Khan Mamber
Mrs. Samina Kamran Mamber

b} HR & Remuneration Commitles:

Mr. Pervaiz Ahmad Khan Chairman
Mr Momin Ciamar MMeambear
Mr Yousaf Kamran Mambear



13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

15.

19,

The terms of reference of the aforesald committess have been formed, documented and advised to the committees for
complianaes,

The frequency of meetings of the committee was as per following.

+  Audit Committes 04
» HR and Remuneration Commitiee 02

The Board has sel up an effective internal audit function which comprises of professionals suitably qualified and
axperencad for the purpose and are conversant with the palicies and procedures of the company

The statutory auditors of Flying Cement Company Limited have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory raling
under the Quality Control Review programme of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with
the Audit Oversight Board of Fakistan that they and all their pariners are in compliance with International Federation of
Acoountants (IFAC) guidelines on the code of ethics, as adopted by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of Pakistan and
that they and the parners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relatives (spouse, parent, dependent and non-
dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or
Director of the Company.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2017. These Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3,6.7,8.27 32 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with; and

(a) in respact of regulation &(1), the Company beligvas that it has sufficient impartiality and is able to axercize independence
in decision making within the Board and hance, does not require to roundup the fraction to 3 indepandent directors:

Explanations for non-compliance with requiraments, other than regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32.33 and 36 are below,

Sr. | Requirement Explanation of Non-Compliance Regulation
Mo, Mumber
1. Momination Committee
The Board may constitute a separate committes, | Curently, the Board has not constituted a separate 281}
dasignated as the nomination committes, of such | nomination committes and the functions are baing
number and class of directors, as it may deem | performed by the human resource and remuneration
appropriate in its circumstances. committee, as and when needed so a separate
committes is not considarad to ba necessary
2 Risk Management Committee
The Board may conslitute the risk management | Cumrently, the Board has not constitvted a risk A1)
committes, of such number and class of directors, | management Commitea and saenior officers of tha
as it may deem apprapriate in its circumstances, | Gompany have performed the requisite funclions and
to camy out a review of effectiveness of risk | apprise the Board accordingly.
managemaent procedures and present a raport to
the Board.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Gl fogge 5

AGHA HAMAYUMN KHAN
Chief Executive

Dated: Qctobar 03, 2024
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Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co.

Gulberg-l, Lahore, Pakistan
Chartered Accountants Ph: +92 42-35876807-4

Fax: +92 42-35T64959

A member firm of
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Email: lhri@inzaj.com pk
Web: www.nzaj.com.pk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the
Board of Directors of Flying Cement Company Limited for the year ended June 2024 with
the regquirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it
does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A
review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit
and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the
Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate
governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their
review and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance within the
reguirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to Our attention which causes us to believe that
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the company's compliance, in all material
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2024.
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Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co,,

Chaortered Accountants

Place: Lahore
Date: Ociober 03, 2024
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Financial Position{Rupees in Milliony
Assete Employed by

Property, plant and equipment
nher assets
Curment assels

Total Asgels

Finapced byiBupees in Million)
Shiareholders equiry

Surplus oa revaluation of fixed sssets net of ¢
Directors & shareholders loan

Long tepm Liabilities

Oithes current habilities

Total equity and habilities

Turnover and Profiti Loss) (Ropeos in Milli
{iross sales

Mar nurnover

Gross Profit{Loss)

Operating ProfitiLossh

Profit’{Less) before taxation

Profit'{Loss) after taxation

Earningsii Losg) pes share (R

Brealmp value per share {R2.)

Analyeis of Statement of Financial Pogition
{Rupees in Millign)

Equity
Mon Cuerent Liabilities
Current Linkilisies

Total Equicy and Liabilitles
Mon Current Azgets

Current Assets

Total Assets

11116

33

8,156

4366

3.8

16,323

13320

3003

16313




2020

Vertical Analysis (%)

Equily 5 59,38 508 49.97
Mom Current Liakilities L8 26.75
Current Lisbiliiies 1294 231,28
Tatal Equity and Lisbilitivs 000 | 00 10000 10600
Hon Current Assets 9130 21,60
Current Azgets 8. 8.0 g 1840
Tutal Assuis ' 100.00 | T

Horizomal Anahveis (Comulafive %)
Equity 221 63 2 12027
Men Cuerent Liskilities 122.96 205.67 G1.40 58.59
Current Lishiliries 146.95 1DB.68 35.83

Total Equity and Liabilities | 491,54 Tl AR§32 118.68

Mon Current Agsets
Current Azzets

Total Asseis 49325 | 373 131,52 226,40

Horizontal Aanlysis {Year on Yenr %)
Equity . b 339 10.00 (0.9
Mon Current Liabilities } L6.93 483
Current Liahiliries

Total Equity and Liabilities
Mon Current Agsetg X 3 7 G 68.63
Current Asgets 124,37} (2133} (29,32}

Toial Assels 3 | {B.60) | i1 &7) 3 ' 39.11




Analysis ol Statement of Profitand Logs Acodunts

(3ross urnover

Het tarnover

Cogt of sales

Cross Profit/{loss)
Administrative Fxpense
Digtribution Expense

Other operating expense

Operating Frofit/(loss)

Finance Clost

Oither Income

Profit/(Loss) before taxaiion

Taxation

Profit/(Loss) after taxation

Other Comprehensive income

Total Comiprehensive income for the vear

ertical Analysiz-%
Turnewer 1 100,00

Cost of Sales L ; 14283

Girozs Profil (42.83)
Administrative Expense i . 5.34
Distribution Expense

Other operaling expense

Operating (loss) / profit E (48.94)
Finangs Cost i : : 2 T4l

Other [ncome (3.83]

{Lasg) / profit before taxation ; (47.51)

Taxation 1.66

Profit/(Loss) after taxation (49.16)

{ither Comprehensive income 0.004

Tatal Comprehensive income for the vear (49.16)
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Horizantal Analysis (Comuolative %)
Tumover

gt of Sales

Cross Profit
Administrative Expense
Distribotion Expense

Other operating expense

Operating {loss) ! profit
Finance Cost

Other Income

{Loss) / profit before taxation

Taxation

{Loss) / profit after taxation

Other Comprehensive ingome

Total Comprehensive income for the year

Horlrontal Analyvzis (Year on Year %)

Turnover

Cost of ales

Gross Profit
Administzative Expende
Distribution Expengs

Oither operating expense

Operating (loss) / profit
Finance Cost

Other Income

{Lass) ¢ profit before taxation

Taxation

{Lass) / profit after taxation

Orher Comprebsnsive income

Total Comprehensive income for the vear

{3630

{(31.9%)

2019

(327.38)
46.60
36,82

{100.00)

(6.27)
203
50,04

[14.3E)

(470.54)

poxie]

(16.95)

305

3393

2537.68

(670.78)

(357.50)

(52.44)

474.31 (10.90)

1.833.09 (28.3%

(429.12)

40,78

{11.72)

(3.92)

474,95 {10.90)

(428.93)

(11.71}

(67.00)

(49.935)

187.84 (165.32)
40.85 {6.65>
34 57 10.24

13587 | LKL

(342.58)
1541
(8.81)

(100.00)

{25.50)
7.53
2429

(26.34)

(39.65) 236,79 (141.54)

4696 G058 (10,36}

575 (17.62% I0ER

(546.17)
14439

(5.02)

(36.08)
(25.41)

7.34

(48.10) 180.39 [14%.47)

{145.58) (295.21) 51478

(378.47)

(3719

(2101}

(19.04)

{70.73) 244,54 {127.07)
(96.80) 1,602.18 20,93

{472.80)

{38493

(21.57)

B3.45

{70.78) 54532 {127.09)

{472.57)

(21.54)
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Percentage %

Times

FINANCIAL RATIOS
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Gross Profit to Sales
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Percentage %
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Percentage %

Profit before tax to Sales

Profit after tax to Sales
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(49.16)
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Equity and Liabilities-FY 2024
Percentage

Short term finance-1.58%

Trade and other
payables-23.27

Long term finance-19.

mEquity m Long Term Finance m Other Liabilities = Trade and other payabla Short term Finance

Assets-FY 2024

Percentage

Oher asseis-3.83%

Stock in trade . 79%

B PPE Stockin Trade M Other assets

rty, plant and equipment-91.38%



Equity and Liabilities-FY 2023
Percentage

Short term finance-0.52%

Trade and other
payables-65.16%

Equity-22.67%

Other liabilities-2.7%

mEquity m Long Term Finance m Other Liabilities = Trade and other pavabla Short term Finance

Assets-FY 2023

Percentage

Chther assets -4.42%

Stock in trade -3.39%

Property, plant and equipment-92.1%

B PPE Stockin Trade M Other assets
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14,000

12,000

10,000

2,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

1,100

900

12,992 s

2021

2022

872

2023 2024
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300

100

{100

191

2019

303

2021

2022

577
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements for the year ended 30" June 2024

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Flying Cement Company Limited (the Company),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024, and the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement
of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017}, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of
the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30,2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive loss, the
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor™s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of

the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

201-Regency Plaza, M.M. Alam Road,
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S5.No Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

1 Sales:

(Refer to the note no 24 to the financial
statements)

The company has recognized gross sale of
amounting Bs. 6,172 885,950 and net of sale tax
and federal excise duty, net sale recognized of
amounting Bs. 4,516,627, 7935 during the current
year.

We identified sale as a Key Audit Matter because
this is a key performance indicator of company
and there is an inherent risk that revenue may be
misstated to meet expectations or targets.

We performed following audit procedures to
verify sale:

For sales recorded during the year, we
verified a sample of sale transactions from
truck loading advice to sales invoices and
sales tax returns.

Quantity of sale recorded, sales tax amount
and amount of federal excise duty verified
from the monthly sales tax return.

Assessed the adequacy of disclosures related
to sale in notes to the accounts.

2 Addition to Capital Work in Progress:

(Refer to the note no 17.7 to the financial
statements)

The company has recognized addition to capital
work in progress of amounting Rs.
4,145,33 1,368 during the current year

We identified addition to capital work in
progress as a Key Audit Matter because there
may be misclassification between capital and
revenue expenditure. Further, there may also be
implications on depreciation expense because of
this misclassification.

We performed following audit procedures to
verify addition to capital work in progress:

Visited company factory during annual stock
take and physically verify the construction of
new plant and building.

Checked that markup capitalized as
borrowing cost during the year met the
conditions specified in TAS-23.

On a sample basis, tested cost incurred with
supporting documents to verify only capital
nature expenses are capitalized.

Checked the adequacy of disclosure of
Capital Work in Progress in the financial
statements in accordance with applicable
financial reporting framework.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auoditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies
Act, 201 7(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use ofthe going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to confinue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
853 going concern.

] Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
amanner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our andit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Reguolatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon
have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (X1X of 201 7} and are in agreement
with the books of account and refurns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the

purpose of the Company s business; and
d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVTII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Shahid Mohsin Shaikh

(FCA).

' N - -f ! -"r 3 5 =
Signature: Nowse e = ,-‘.]‘;J'«ML J "L&—7 J"{"‘
Lahore

Date: October 03, 2024

UDIN: AR202410575xbOmcITHg



Flying Cement Company Limited

Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2024
2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupess
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL & RESERVES
Authorired shase capital
#00.,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- cach. £.000.000.000 &.000.000,000
Isauedd, subscribed and paid up capital 5 6, 948,000,000 6,548,000,000
654 800,000 ordinary sharss of Bs. 10/- each.
Reserves a 1,551,883, 173 1.441.370,551
8,499 883,173 8,389,370,551
Divectors & sharsholders loan 7 57,035,933 ST.035.933
Surplus on revalvation of fixed assels & 3,786.644.456 3.845.115.454
3,841.680,389 5,902.151,437
12,343.563,562 12,291,521 978
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long teom liabilities g 3.589.685.120 4,091,827,193
Loan from associated undsriaking in 934,678,914 906,739,954
Long teimn deposils 1 18,205,340 14,505,340
Dafarrad liabilities 12 541,136,312 339,508,799
5,083,705.686 5.352.581,286
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Teade and other payables 13 5.820,070,544 3533344 450
Directors & shareholders loan 350,271,281 511,104 928
Unglaimed Dividend 14 59,526 39,526
Short term finances ) 395435354 280,040,805
Current portion of long term finance g 1,368, 184,996 1.001,68] 928
7.934,021.951 5.326.231,637
TOTAL LIARILITIES 13,017,727,667 10,678,812 923

Confingencies and commitments 16

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

15.361.291.229 £2.5970.334.50

21,175,335,723
32,880,151

21,208,235,874

130,699,796
778,963,317
172087368
617,999 960

62,346,586

ASEETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

FProperty, plant & equipment 17 23,174 488,535

Long term security deposits ia 32,880,151
23,.207.368.686

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores, spares & looss tools 19 134,840,629

Stock in trade 20 1,215.420.461

Teade debis 21 192,495,895

Advances, deposits, prepayments & other recelvabies 22 474,870,766

Cash and bank balances 23 136,294,792

2.153.922.543

1,762.099,026

TOTAL ASSETS

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of thess financial statements.

g

Chiel Executive

i P

Director
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Flying Cement Company Limited

Statement OF Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For The ¥ear Ended fune 30, 2024

2024 2043
Note Rupees Eupges
Gross Sales 24 6,172.885,950 5.729.080,532
Lesz Sales tax and federal excise duty 1.656,258,155 1.485.553.773
Trade discount - -
1.656.258.155 1485553773
Met sales 4.516,627,795 4243 526,759
Cost of Sales 25 (4,187,176,042) {3,666,530.288)
Gross Profit 329,451,753 5T6.996,471
Operating Expenses
Distsibution Expenges 26 [20,987,367) [18,772.976)
Administrative Expenses 27 (100,746,321) (86,200,368)
Cither Opersting Expensas 23 {24,619.241) [25,509,955)
3 (146,352,929} {130,483.29%)
Operating Profit 183,098,824 446.513,172
Finance Cost 29 (178,590.,228) {168,507 788)
Oithes Income 30 329,331,839 Q1,737 400
Profit Before Taxation 333,831,435 3489742, 784
Taxation il (282,384.665) (98,497,104}
Profit / (Loss) After Taxation 51.446.770 271245 630
Other comprehensive income:
ftems that will mor be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of obligation of emplovees retirement 837,766 662,882
benefity
Deferred tax on remeasurement of defined benahits plan (242,952 {192,236}
594,814 4706486
Total Comprehensive lncome / {Loss) for the year 52,041,584 271,716,326
Earnings / (Logs) Per Shate (befoe tax) - Basic 32 0.48 0.53
Eamings / (Loss) PerShare (after tax) - Hasic 32 007 0.39
The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements,
[ T
T

DMrector Chiecf Executive Chief Financial Officer
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FLYING CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHAWNGES [N EQUITY
FOR THE Y EAR ENDED JUNE 30, 224

Balance asat Julv 01, 2022

Prafit  { Logs) far the vear

(Other comprebensive Incomes {Loss! for the year
Directons & Shareholdsrs loan - Net
Ineremental depreciation

Balance as i Jane 3, 2023

Profit ¢ {Loss) fur the yesr

Other comprehensive Tnoome (Loss) far the year
Directors & Shercholders loan - Met
Incrementfal depreciafion

Balance as s June 340, 2024

Caopital Reserves

Ordinary Share Avvumulated Direciars & Tatal
Capital Profit / (Logs) Shareholders Loan Revalnation Gain on Dizpasal of] neA
Surplus Shares
[R5} Bs.) RBs.} (RS.) {Rs.} Rs.}
5, 942000 000 983,010,923 £7.038.033 30047798044 126,078,004 12,009,808 654
I71,716334 271716324
50,664,310 (S A64,300;
6, 948,000,000 1,314,391,557 5T.035,933 FH45, 0115404 126,974,594 12,291,521,978
- 52041584 - - 52041584
- SEATI 038 (58 471.038;

The annexed potes Trom 1 to 42 form an integral part of these Anancial statemenis.

o e

D¥irector

T

- e i

Chiel Executive

_L_Lqﬂﬂ..

Chiel Financial Officer
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FLYING CEMENT COMPANY LIMITED

CASHFLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Cash generated from operalions 40 2,493,089,751 2005253517

Gratuity Paid - (60,000)

Finance cost paid (178.,599,228) {168,507,788)

Income Tax (paid) / refund received (81,766,318) (69,606,900
Net Cash from Operating Activitics 2,232,724,205 1, 767,078,829
Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Fixed Capital Expenditure (2,170,170,484)] (2,906,544,567)

Long Term Security deposit - -
Net Cash (used in) Investing Activities (2,170,170, 484) (2.906,544.567)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Term Finance - Nel (20,244,476) 539.066.229

Associted undertaking 27,938,962 586,932,350

[nereaze in Long term deposit 3,700,000 500,000
Net Cash from Financing Activities 11,394,486 1.126.498.579
Net Inciease / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 73,948,200 (12,967,159
Cash and Cash Equivalents - at the beginning of the year 62,346,585 75,313,744
Cash and Cash Equivalents - at the end of the year 136,294,792 62,346,585

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

o e Qoo G thrggom b el

Diirector Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer




Flying Cement Company Limmted
Motes Ta The Financial Stalemenis
For The ¥ear Ended June 30, 2024

1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS
Flying Cement Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a Public Limited Company
on December 24,1992 under the Companies Osrdinance 1984, (Mow the companies Act, 2007}, The shares of
the company are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited,
The principal activities of the company ave to manufacwring, marketing and sale of cement. The geographical
location and address of the company’s business units including plants are as follows:

Bosiness Unic Geographical Location & Address
Head Office (Registersd office) 63 A~ Sher Khan Road, Lahore Camntt
Manufacturing Plant 25-Em. Lilla Interchange Lahors - Islamabad Motorway bdangowal

Distt. Khoshab

I  BASIS OF FREPARATION

21 Statement Of Compliance
These financial statements huve been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The sccounting and reporting standards applicable inPalkistan comprise of:

= Imternational Financial Repoding Standapds (IFRS) issued by the Imfernational Accounding Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companiss Act, 2017 (the Act); and

= Provisions of and directives issued under the Act,
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Compenies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the
proviziond of and directives isgued undes the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.1 Basis of Measuremeni
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, excepl for cerlain Tlems,
as disclosed n the relevant accounting policies below,
Functional and presentation currency
These financial sialements are presenied in Paxistan Pupee (PKR. / Buopees) which iz the Company "2
functiomal comency. Amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest of
PER. / Rupeez. unless otherwise stated,

1.} Kev Tudgments and estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and repocting standasds as
applicable m Pakisten, requites the use of certam c¢rifical accounting estimates. In, addition, it requires
management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the company °s accounting policies. The areas
mvolvmg 8 high degree of judgment or complexity. or areas where assumptions and estomates sre significant
to the financial statements. are documented in the following accounting policies and notes, and relate
piimarily to;

= Valoarion wseful lives, residual values and depreciation method of Property, Plant and equipment [Refer o
Mote 17].

= Provigion for slow moving inventories

- Obligation of defined benefit plans for emplovess. [Refer to note 12.2]

= Estimate of current and deferred tax, [Refer tonote 12.1]

- Estimate of contingent liabilities.

- lmpairment loss of non-financial assets other than inventories.

3 Change in accounting standards. interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting

standards
3.1 Amendments to published aceounting and reporting standards which became effective during the year:

There wero certain amendments to the accounting and reporting standards which became mandatory for the
Cotpany during the year. However, the amendments did not have any significant impact on the Gnancial
reporting ofthe Company and, therefore, have not been diselosed in these financial statements.

TAS | (Amendments) “Pregsentation of Financial Statements ™ and TAS § (Amendments) “Acconnting Polivies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors*; Effective date (annwal reporting periods beginning on or after
Jampary 31,2023

IFES 3 (Amsendments) * Business Combination’; Effective date (annwal reporing periods beginning on or after
Japwary 31,2022

IFES 16 (Amendments) “Leases”; Effective date (anouval reporting periods beginning on or after Janvary 31,
2021

Intersst Rate Benchmark Eeform whick amended IFES 9 ° Financial Instruments ', [AS 39 ¥ Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurgment * and [FRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures™, : Effeclive date
(annual reporting periods beginning on or after Janoary 31, 2021

3.2 The adoption of the above standards, amendments, mrerpretations and improvemsnis did not have any

material effect onthe financial statements.
IFES 17 Insurance Contract
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4 Significani Accouniing Policies
The prmeipal accountmg policies applied in the preparation of thege financial statements are g=t oul below,
These policies have been comsistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

41 Property, Plant and equipment

The Company has adopted revaluaton model for e property, plant and equipment, Property, plant and
equipment except for equipments furniture and fixture and vehicles which are stated at cost less accumulated
deprecistion and finpaitment loss if any. Freehold land is stated at cost less impaimment loss. if any.
Diepreciation charged on all depreciable assets is charged to profit and loss account on the reducing balance
method over ite estimated vseful lifs at annual rates mentioned in note of fixed assets (17) after taking into
account their residual values, Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which asset is available
for use and on disposal before the month of disposal. Residusl values and emd the uzeful lives of the agsets are
reviewed atleast at each financial year end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

Subsequent cosis including major Tenewals and improvements are included in the camying amount of the asset
of are recognized as sepasate assef ag appropriate, only when it is probable that fuluse economic henefits
sesociated with the agset will flow to the company and cost can be messured relishly. The cammying amount of
the teplaced part is derecognized al the time of replacement, Wormal cepair and maintenance and day to day
servicing are charged to the statement of profit or loss as mewrred,
The depreciation methods. usefnl lives and residual valueg of items of propesty, plant and equipment are
reviewsd periodically and altered if circumstances ot expectations have changed significantly. Any change or
adjustment in depreciation tnethod, vseful lives and residwal values is accounted for ag a change i accoumtng
cstimate under JTAS 3. " Accounting Policies, Changes i Accounting Estimates and Ermors® and is applicd
progpectively in the financial statements by adjusting the depreciation charge for the period in which the
amendment of change has heen made snd for future periods. Disposal of sm item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised when significant risk and rewards, incidental to the ownership of that asset, have
been transfemred to the buyer. Gain and loss on disposal i3 determined by comparmg the camrying amount of
that asset with the sales proceed and is recognised within *other income /[ other operating expenses * in the
statement of profit.

4.1 Capital Work in Progress
Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss, All expenditures connected to the
specific assets incurred and construction period is carried under capital work in progress. These are ransferred
to specific assets as and when these are available foruse,

4.3 Stock = in - trade
Stock in trade are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost of raw materials and components
represent invoice values plus other charges inewurred thereon. Cost of inventory is based on weighted average
cost. Cost in relation to work in process and finished goods represent direct cost of raw materials, wages and
appropriate manufacturing ovecheads. Goods in transit are valued at cost accummulated upto the eporting date,
The company reviews the carrying amount of stock in trade on an ongoeing basis and az appropriate, inventory
iz writtan down to its net realizable value or provision iz made for obsolescence if there is any change inusage
pattern and phyeical form of related inventory.
Wet realizable value is the estirated aelling price i the ordmary courge of buginess legs costs necessory o be
ingurred in order to maks sale,

4.4 Stores, spares & loose wols
Stores, spares and loose tools are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value, The cost of inventory is
based on weighted average cost [tems in transit are stated at cost accumulated up to the reporting date. The
Company reviews the carrying amounts of stores, spares and [oose tools onan op-going basis and provigion is
made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage.

4.5 Taxation
The rax expense for the year comprises current and deferred fax. Tax is recognized in the statement of profit
or logs, excepl to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehengive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
Current
The cument tax charge i3 calgulated on the basis of the tax Jaws enacted or substantively enacted ar the
reporting dute. The charge for current tax alse includes adjustments, where considered necessary, fo provision
for tax made in the previous wears ariging from aggesgments framed during the year for such years.
Deferred
Deferred tax iy recognized using the balance sheet method in respect of temporary differences arising bebween
the tax bases of assets and lishilities and their camying amounts in the financial statements, Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date
and are sxpected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is reglized or the deferred tax Hahility is settled,
Deferred tax Habilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax agsels
are recognized onky to the extent that itis probable that future taxable profit will be available agamst which
the temporary differsnces can be ufilized.
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4.6 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and ofher receivables are classified as financial assets at amortized cost according to [FRS 9.
Under LAS 39, trade and other receivables were previously classified s loans and receivables. Trade debts are
initially recognized at original invoice amount which is the fair value of the consideration to be received in
future and subsequently measured at cost less provision for doubtful debis. The Company wzes simplified
approach for measuring the expected credit losses for all frade and other receivables including contract assets
based on lifstime expecled credit losses. The Company estimates the credil losses wiing a provision matiix,
where trade receivables are grouped based on ditferent cusfomer ativibutes along with historical, current and
forward looking astumptions. Bad debis are written off with the approval of beard of directors when
identified

4.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents
{ash and cash equivalents are stated at cost i the statement of financial postfion. For the purpose of cash flow
statement cash and cash equivalent consists of cash in hand and balances with banks and short term
bormowings under markup arrangement, saving and deposit accounts,
4.8 Trade and other payables
Liahilities for trade and other payables are carried ar their amaortized cost, which approximate fair value of the
consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company
4.9 Financial Liabilities
Financial labilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party fo the contractual
provigions of the instrument. AL finemeial liabilities are recognized initially at fair valee less directly
aitributable transactions costs, if any, and subseguently measured at smoitized cost vsing effective interest
method.
A finencial liability 15 derecognized when the obligation wnder the liability iz discharged or cancelled or
expired. Where an existing fGnancial lability is replaced by another fom the some lender on substantially
different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substanfially modified, such an exchange or
modification is trested as & DE recognition of original liability and recognition of a new liability and the
difference in respective carmrying amounts 15 recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
410 Financial Assets
The details of new accounting policies after the application of IFRS 9 iz as follows. The new IFRS effectively
eliminated |oans and receivables category of the previous LAS 39,
4.10.1 Classification
Finoneiul agsets are classified, into following categories: financial asgets al amortized cost, financial agtets at
fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income as pai
the requirements of IFRS-9. The financial assets ave classified at initia! recognition based oa the business
model used for managng the financial assets and contractual terms of the cash flows,
a)  Financial assets at amortized cost
A financial asset shall be classifizd as financial assst at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are
et
- the assets held within a business mods! whose ohiective is to hold assefs in order to collect confractual cash
flows
- Contractual termg of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal emownt outstanding,
b}  Financial asscts af Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Drebi instruments where confractual cash flows are solely peyments of principal and interest and the objective
of the company ig achieved by both collecting cash flows and selling (ne financial pssets.
Equity mvestments that are not beld for ttading and the company wmade sn imevocable electiom &t inihal
recognition (o measuee it at fair vabue with only dividend income vecognized in profic or loss.
€) Financial asset at fair value through Profit or loss
Financial asset shall be measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive Tncome.
A debt instrument can be classified as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates
of gignificantly reduces a messurement of recognilion inconsistency that would otherwise acize fom
measuring from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains or losses onthem on different basis.
4.10.2 gecognition and Mensurement
Regular purchases and zales of financial asselz ave recognized on the trade-date — the dale on which the
Company commits to purchase or seli the asset. Investments are inifially recognized af fair value plus
wransaction costs for all financial assets not camried at fair value through peofit or loss. Financial aszets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially vecognized at faim value, and fransaction costs are expensed m
the statement of profil or logs. Financial assels are devecognized when the righis to receive cash Dows from the
mvestments have expired or have been transfened and the Company has ransferred substantially all rizks and
rewards of ovwnership, After initial recognition, financial assets are measured at amortized cost Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or foss” category
gre presented inthe statement of profit or loss within " other income / other operating expenses” in the period
in which they arise.
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Dividend income from [nancial assets at fair value through prolit or logs is recognized [n the statement of
profit or loss as part of "other Income* when the Company s right to recerve payments 15 established. Gains or
loagey arising from changes in fair value of the *[inancisl assets at faiv value through other comprehensive
incoms * category are recognized in other comprehensive mcome with only dividend income recognized in
profil or loss. The Company assesses at the end of each reporling period whether there is objeclive evidenca
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. If any soch evidence exists for available -for-
sale financial assers, the cumulative loss — measured as the ditference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss - is
removed from equity and recognized in the statement of peofil or loss. Impairment losses recognized in the
statement of profit or loss on equity instruments are not reversed through the statement of profit or loss,
Financial agseiz and liabilities age offset and the net amount feported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offsel the recognized amounts and there is an intention to seftle on
allies the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right mwst not be contingent om
future evenis and must be enforceable in the normal course of business.

4.11 Derivative, linancial instruments and hedging activitics
Devivatives ave inttially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contvact is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair vahues. The method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends on
whether the decivative i designated as a hedging ingtrument, if so, the nature of the ilem being hedged. The
Company designates certain derivatives as either fair value hedge or cash flow hedge,

8)  Fair Value Hedge

A hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a vecognized asset or liability of an uhrecognized fiom
commitment or & component of any such mtem fhat i= artributable to a particular risk and could affect profit or
loas.
A hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is anriburable to a particular risk associated with all
o 8 component of & recognized azzet or hability or & highly probable forecast trangaction smd could affect
profit or loss,

412 Borrowing Costs
Bottowing costs are recognized ag an expenss in the period in which they are incurred except  where such
costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which case
such costs are capitalized az parl of the cost of that agset.

4.1% Provisions
Provigiong are recognized when the Company hag a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events and it is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
ohligation and o reliable estmate of the amount can be made. Provigions are tesigwed at each reporting date
and adsted to reflect current best estimate

414 Fyreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in forsign cumrencies are accounted for m Pakistan rupees at monthly average rafes, Monstany
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing ar the
repotting date, Exchange gain orlosses ave charged to profit and loss sceount,
4.15 TImpairment of Non- financial agsels
Mon-financial agsets are reviewed al each reposting date (o identily clrewmstances indicating occusrence of
tnpairment loss or reversal of previous impaiement losses, if any. An impairment loss is recognized for the
amount by which the agset’s carryving amount excesds itg recoverable amount. The recoverable amount i the
higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and valoe in use. Reversal of impaicment [oss is restricted to the
eriginal cost of the aasel.
4.16 Revenue recognition
According 1o the coee principles of IFRS-15, the Company recogmzes the revenue to depict the trangfes of
promised goods and services fo customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. The Company recognizes the revenue in
accordance with that core prnnciples by applving the following steps.
= Tldentfy comtract with the customers.
- ldentify the performance obligations inthe contract.
= Detrermine the transaction price,
= Allpcaie the tramsaction price (o the perfurmance obligations in the contract.
- Recognize revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The Company 1= mvolred m manufactoring end sale of cements and cimker. Revenue from sale of goods is
recognized when the Company satisfiss a performance obligation (at a point of time) by transferving promised
goods to customers bemg when the goods are dispatched to customers. Bevenue 15 messvred af fair valve of
the consideration received or receivable and is reduced for allowances such as taxes, duties, commiszion., sales
returns and discounts, [ncome from different souices other than sbove is recognized on the following basis

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established,
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4,17 Related Party iransactions
The company enfers into transactions with related parties on arm' s Iength basis, Prices for transactions with
related parties are determined using sdmissible valuation methods, except in exiremely rare circumsiances
where, subject to approval of the board of divectois It is in the interest of the company to do so.

418  Seaff Retirement benefits

The Company cperates a defined benofit plan ie gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees subject to
attainment of retirement age and minimum service of prescrbed period. Contributions are made to fund on the
basis actuarial reconunendations. Actuarial valuation is carried our using the prejected wait ceedit method. All
actuarial gams and losses are recognized in other comprehensive Income.

419 Earning Per Share-Basic
The Company presents saming per share data for its ordmary shares. EFS i3 calculated by dividing the profit
or loss arributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
sharea guistanding durmg the period.

420 pividend and appropriations
Dividend is recognizsed as liability in period in which it s declared Appropriations of profit are reflacted in
the statemen of changes in equity in the period in which spprpriations are approved.

4.21 Share Capital
Ordinary shares are clagsified a5 esquity and recognized af face value,

4.22 |ease
The Company is the lessee:

At meeption of a contracl, the Company asgesses whether & contract is, o7 confaing, 2 lease based on whelher
the confract conveys the right to conmol the vse of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration, Lease terms are negotiasted on an individual basis and contain 2 wide tangs of different tenms
and conditions,

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and 2 corresponding liability at the date at which the leazed asset
15 available for use by the Company,

The leage lability is inifally measured at the present value of the [=ase payments that are not peid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest vate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily
detszmimed, the Company’s meremental boirewing rate 15 used, bemg the vate that the mdividual lessee would
hawve to pav to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar valus to the right-of-use agsetin 2
gimilar economic snviremment with similar terms, secuiity and conditions,

Lesse payments include the following:

- fixed payments, less any lease incentives recelvable;

- variable lease payments that ave based on an index ot avate, initially measured using the index o7 rate asat
the commencement date;

- amounis sxpected to be payable by the Company under tesidual value guaraniess;

- the exercize price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option: and
-payments of penaltiss for terminating the leaze, ifthe lease tevm reflects the lessee exercizing that option,
less any lease incentives receivable.

Lease payments to be mads under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. 1t is re-
meagured when these iz a change i futuee leage payments atizsing from a change in fixed leage paymenis or an
index or rate, change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual valoe
guaramtes, ot if the Company changes its agseggment of whether it will exercise a purchage, extengion or
termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the rght-ofuse asset, or
i vecorded in the statemment of profit or logs if the camying amount of rnght-of-uge agset hag been reduced o
zern.

The right-of-use saget is initially measured based on the mitial amowvnt of the leaze lability adjusied for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
eatimate of costs fo dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlyving agset or the gite an
which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight line
method over the leage teom as this methed most closely reflects the expected pattein ofconsumption of future
economic benefits. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any. and adjosted for cestain re-
meagurements of the leage lability,
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7.1

8.1

2024 2023

SHARE CATITAL Nate Rupees Rupees
al Avthorized Capital

200,000.000 12023 : E00,000,000} ordinary shares of Ra.10/- each, £.000.000,000 2.000.000.000
b] [4sued. Subscribed and Paid Tp Capital 6,374,191.890 6374191850
- E37.419,139 (2023 : 637 419,189} ordinary shares of Ra 105~ =ach

fully paidup in cash.
- 22.5E0,B11 r2023: 22.580.811) ordinary shares of Ks. [0/ each 225,808,110 225808110

fully paid up for consideration ofher thew cash - Planr & Machmery
= 34.800.000 (2023 34.800.000 ) bonus shases of Rs.10/- each 348.000,000 248,000,000

issued a3 bonus shares,

PR— . |11 T . 015

RESERVER
Capital Beserve 126,975,994 126978004
Revenue Heserve
Un-appropriated Profit’iLoss) L4224, 904,179 1.314.3%1 557

bt AT L N S B S W R S

DIRECTORS & SHAREHOLDERS LOAN -UNSECURED
Directors & shareholiers loan 71 ST 035,933 570035933

£7.035,033 ¢ 57,035,933
The directors have provided interest free loan for expansion project, The repayment of the loan 15 at the discrefion of the Company.

SURPLUS ON REVAL UATION OF FIXED ASSETS

Balance az July OF. IB45115.494 3904 7T B04
Aadd: Revaluation Surplus - -
3 845,105,494 3,904, 7T _EO4
Less: Surplug fransferred 1o accumulated profit
Tneremental depreciation B2353,575 B, 034,255
Dreferred Tax etfect (23,882, 537]) (24,369,929)
E8.471,03% 59 664,310

= FTH6644.456 GR45 115404
The company got ite agpete e, land. boilding, plant & machinesy revalugd on Jone 300 2006 on the bagie of cuccent mearket prices by MYz Hazib
Aggagiates (Fvi) Limited, an independent and agproved waloers from Pakistan Banks Associafion, Subsequently the company got ith assecs revained
in Jume 2013 by an indspendant valoor. However, no material differonces were identified. Subpequently. ar per peinciplas and guidelines insued by
TFRE, the company got itsagssts .2, land, building. plant & machinery revaluad on Tune 30, 2012 on the basiz of current market prices by M5 Hagib
Aggociates [Pt} Limited, an indepemdent and approved valuers from Pakistan Banks Agsocigfion. Surplug on rewaluation inchodes freshold land

smounting to B5.111.594 million [ 2022: Rs. 111.5%4 million?.
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2024 2033
Maote Rupees Bupees
i LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Logas from banking companies - gecuped 9.1 AETEART E0G 4,083,452.707
Loans fiom non banking fnancial companisd - decured - B.3T4 488
Lease from non banking financial companies- seoured 9.2 13,217,511 -
! — 3SR0ARSI0 4 091.RIT 193
LirANS FROM BANKING COMPAMIES - SEECURED
HMarional Bank of Pakistan Demand Finance - [ 2.1 1,086,548 580 1,086,548 580
HMaticnal Bank of Pakistan Demand Finance - II1 4.1.2 = 4,479,000
Maticnal Banke of Pakistan Demand Finanes - TV 2.1.3 T, AD5.433 980,405.433
Mational Bank of Pakistan Demand Finance- ¥ 9.1.4 Fo0.000,000 S60,040.000
HMatiznal Bank of Pakistan Demand Finance - W1 41.5 103,288,000 105, 258000
Matfional Bank of Pakistan Demand Finance - VT 16 1218435, 000 1.218,435,000
HMational Bank of Pakistan Demand Finance - I 9.1.7 16162314 116162314
Maticnal Bank of Pakigtan Demand Finance - T 1.8 T33.400,000 733,400,000
Al Barakz Bank Diminizhing Musharika .9 331,845,282 474 280 380
4.9230.084,609 5.076,957,707
Legs: Current portion of loans trom banking companies-secored {1 353,617, 000) 1993 505000
3,5T6,A67,609 4.083.452,707
LAOANS FROM NON BANEKING FINANCLAL COMPANIES -SECURED
i Inves: Capiral investment Bank LTD- Loan 924 B.170.928 16,5351.414
Invest Capiral investment Bank 1 TD- Lease 922 to .16 19,608,57% -
Less: Currentportion of loans from non benking financial companies - secured (8,176,928) {8.176,928)
Lesz: Currentportion of leage from non banking financial compamies - gecured [0 06k =
12217511 8374480

901 The Company had availed facility of Demand fnance of Rz, | 500 millicrn with sub-limit of Impar LC-Sight frorm Maticnal Bank, of Pabistan at 25%
Margin over fixed assets secured againgt lst charge of B2 000 million over all preseat and future fixed agiets (HypothecationMortgaged of the
comnpany and parsonal guarantees of all direptors to finance up gradation of production capacity. (The facility reschaduled Be. 1086.55 million on 18-
10-2023).

The reschedyled facility inchudes 8 deferment pediod of 9 months and prncipal to be repaid in 12 quartedly ingtalments of Rg.93.73 million ¢ach, The
firge ingtalmont will ba fall dua on 30-09-2024. Markup ghall be charged at 3 MMonths KIBOR plus 1.5% pa

Sub-limit of LOC-Sight ingludag facility of Ra, 1430 million against nil Cagh WMargin o finance import requirement for up-gradation of groduction
capacity to sequrad againgt lien an documents of title to Goods and same security packages and spongor commitment ag for Demand finance facilicy.

The facility will expire aon gight and regayment againat the facility will be through disburzement of demand finance / own source of company.

9.0.2 The Compary has availed facility of demand finance facility TIT freah facility of Ra.73 million for coat ower runs of plant expangion o finance for
retivermenit of import docurments imcluding bille of exchange asising dus to upweard fluctuationg in curreney appreciation of BEoro ¢ Dollar parity with
Pak Rupees with a maukog of 3 month KIBOR plus 2% p.a. The principalis to be repaid in 16 goarerty instalments of Rz4.5365% million. The facility
of demamd fnence are secured against 12t charge of fs 98 million overall present and future dxed asdets (hypothecation/Morigage) of the Cormpany,
lien of import docuprents and personal gnerantees of ]l Directors.

.08 LO-Sight OTT ineludes facility for impert of addifional machinery / wpgrading  production capacity to fesh feilivy PER equivalent of up to USD

8.88% million caleulated at convession rate on the date of Wsuance of LC or PER 135 USD which ever 1s lower Le, maximum up o 1.LEL306 million
agairst il Cagh Margin to retive irnport docurents & to finance addifional machinery ariging fue to modificaricns in previoog CAPEX in ordar to
asgnge peliability of plant at edbapced capacity gecwred against lien on decoments of title o Goods apd same gecunty packages and sponsor
commitment a8 for Demand finance facility, Upon ietisement of each bill of sxchange, customer shall Seposit prorace amount of exchange difference
ower and abovethe DF limit of Rs 1181306 million ensuring that NBF funded exposare remaing within DF limir of Rg 1181306 million.

The facility 13 rescheduled Bs, 981 mallion on [§-10-2023, The reschaduled facility included 3 defeoment pesiod of 9 momths and poneipal o be repaud

in 14 quatterly imstalinsnts of Ks. 70,513 million #ach The first mestalment will be fall dug en 30092084, Markup shall be charged at 3 Months
KIBOR plos 2.0% pa,

87



Flying Cement Company Timnited

Motes To The Financial Statemeainis
For The Yeor Ended tume 300 2024

9.1.4

9.1.6

4.1.8

5.2.2

9.2.3

The Company hes availed facility of Demand finance of Be 1. LE1-306 million with sub-ligmit of Import LC-Sight from Wational Bank of Pakistap &t
25% Margin owver Fixed Assets secored against 15t charges of R 1576 million over all present and foture fixed asseis (HypothecationMomzaze) of

the Comparsy and personal goarantess ofall directods to finance up gradation of production capacity.

The Company has availed facility of Demand finance facility-V of Re 400 million from Wational Bank of Pakistan secared against 15t Pari Passu
charge of B4 334 millian owver all present and fumoee fixed sssets (Hypothecation/Mortgage) of the Company, Martgaze of two leased rezidential
properiies of Sponsord of 3 & A, Bridge Colony, Abid Majesd Road, Lahors hawing fotced sale valve Re 190,153 M and personal guarantees of all
directors, The facility 1z rescheduled Es. 360 million on 18-10-2003. As per the rescheduled [etter, the Company 12 requirsd to pay 18 quacterly
inzralments of Es 20 million each starting from 3 1-09-2024, [t will be charged with 2 Months KIBOR plus |75 %, The repayment of the insralments
has been deferred fill 3112 2028,

5 Fresh Demand Finance - Facility for EBs 134 millien to Finance foreign exchange differential amount ¢ finance cost overmon requirement of the

Company against First Parl Fassu charge of the company amournving to Bs 179 million and personal guasantees of all Directogs. 1t will be charged with
3 Months KIBCR plus 2 %, The facility i rescheduled for Ra. 103291 million. It will be paid in 37 monthly instalments from 29-09-20@4 10 29-09-
2027,

Fresh Demand Finence Facility Bs [A400 millicn bave been obtzined for against our current facilities of LC 30¢ million and 1,000 million and Cagh
Finance Rz 100 million sgainst (st Pari Pessu charge of the Company emounting to Ks L267 million owver all present & future fixed assets of the
Company, Hypothecation charge over Plant & Machinary and mortgage charge on land and personal guarantees of two sponsor Directors. The faciliny
ig rescheduled for Rs. [ 419 million. Maskup shall be charged at 3 Months KEIBOR plus 2 %, It will be paid of in 18 calendar quartecly instaliments for
Bz, 0 miihon mach slarbing from 31032025 to 30-06-2029.

Fresh Demand Finance Facility Rz 610 M-millicn hawe been obtained agaist our current mark up on COF, DF and L facilities against 1zt Pan Passu
charge of the company amounting to R 814 Million, First Charge over all preaent & Fofure fixed sgeets of the company. Hypothecation charge over
Plant & hachinery and mortgags charge on land and personal gusrantees of 81l Directors, The facility 15 resheduled Be. 176 million. Tt will be paid
12 monthly instalemenis starred from 3009 2024 1o 31-10- 2025

The Company has svailed facility of Demand Fimance of Bs 750 Million o refimance CAPEY of BMR (wasie Heat Recovery Plant) from Mational
Bank of Pakistan at 23% margin on limit o%ver Fiooed Assets secured sgamst 1st charge of Bs 1,000 Million over all present and futune fixed asscts
{Hypotheeation/Mortgage) of the compeny and personal guarantees of two Sponsor Directors. The facility 15 rescheduled for R=. 734 million. Marle
up shall be charged at 3 bonth Kibor+1.5% PA. It will be repaid in 20 calendar quarterly mstalments starming from 16-11-2024 to [6-08-202%.

A Thminighing Mugharika Fagility of Bs &00 millicn is obtained from Albaraka Baek Pakistan Limited, a2 per Islamic mode of financing tanor iz 5
years with one half yearg geace period for principal repayment only and afterward, the due amount indtalment shall be paid by T equal half yearly
instalments over the remeining years of 3.5 years. The finance is secured against 1ot Pan Passu cherge over current sssets of the Company valuing Re.
144 malliom, 1st Pari Passu charge over Fixed azsets of the Company valuing Bs 882 million, and personal guarantee of all Directors of the Company.
Wiarkap iy charged & month KTROR + 3%,

All these facilities also mclude commitment of sponsonng directors through pledee of sheres.

Loan finance faciliny theough loan of B2 315 million 13 obtained fom Investment Caprial Bank Limited agamst finance teaure J6-months with
monthly mstalmmt of Lst twelve months of Bs 948 460 and Ind twelve months of s 943,735 and 3rd twelve months of Bs %012 10 sterting from
harch. 2022 fill Febmuary, 2025, The finance is secuzed by the pledge of eriginal documents of Mercedes Benzs-400 hybrid. LEB-17-4 which is
owned by the director of company.

Lease Liabilities

Leage finance facility of Re. 5.7 14 million ig obtained from Tayestmant Capital Bank Limited againgt finance tanure J6-months with monthly

instalment of 157 fwelve months of Bs243 950 and Znd fwelve months of B5,.243 575 and 5nd twelve months of B2, 230,173 stacting frorn 20612+
2025 to 20-12-2026. The Bnance iz secured by the pledge of oniginel documents of MG 1S Essence 1.5 Tutho AQN-114.

Lease finance Gcility of Bs. 7429 million 15 obteined fom Investment Caprial Bank Lirnited agams: finance tenure d6-amonths with monthly
ingtalment of | st twelye monthe of Ra.316.25 and Znd tarelve monthz of Ba 314,465 and 3rd tarelve months of Rs. 298,345 siarting from 26-12-2023
o 28- 1 1-2026. The finance iz secured by the pledoe of origingl documents of Cherry Tigo 8 Pro AQA 41
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9.2.4 Lease finance facility of Bz 2.556 mullion is obtained from Investmer: Caprtal Banl Limited against finance tenure 36-months with monthly
insralment of |50 twelve months of Ra 403,695 and 2nd reelve months of Re40].650 and 30d twelve months of Rs. 383,215 staming from 15-01-

9.2.5

12

2024 fo 15-12-20265. The finance iz secured by the pledge of ariginal documents of Toyots Hihm: Rewo & 2.81.

et out below iz the carying amount of zase lisbilitizs recogrnized and the movemenbt during the year

Maoto Yehicles
Opening Balance  huly 01, 2023

Additiona 22.699,78%

Arcretion of inlerest 1677543
Payments 15.768,755)
Closing Balane  June 30, 2094 19,608,579
20k24 2023
Note Rupees Rupeas
LOAN FROM ASS0OCIATED UNDERTAKINGS - UNSECURED
Flying Paper ndustries Limited TIEALSATE T29,913476
Flying Board & Paper Products Limited 153,509,505 132,370,845
Poly Pager & Board MillsPv1) Limited AN g
Zamam Paper & Board Mills (Pvt) Limited 10 a0 058010
Y14,678.914 GG, 139,954

Theze represents markup frezloans from associated underzkings thet will be repayable on discretion ofthe company
LONG TERM DEFOSITS - UNSECURED
Drealers 1.1 2 E0E.000 2805000
Tmnsporters 11.2 15,400,344 11,700,340

S el

Thesze represent interest free security depasity from delears and the dealership ia provided for a period of five years. The agreement 13 renewalle on

expiry of previous coniract period Theze are being utilized by the Company in aceosdames with agreed terms,

Theze represent interest free secutity depogity feom manspomters and 8s per agreement thege are repayable after a period of five years. The agraement ig

renewable on expiry of previous contract period. These are being unlized by the Company in accordance with agreed terms,

DEFERRED LIABILITLES
Deferred Taxation 121 535,360,471 134,499,172
Gratuity 122 5775841 5,009,628

—_— SdlIdend 30 SIRR00

Deferred Taxation =Net

Taushle teppoqary differences - effect therenf

~Excess of aveounting bowk value of fxed assers overtheir tax base 819,342 555 99,685,374

-Prepaid rent

Dreductible rernposary differences - effect therenf

~Cratuty (1.209840) (1. 200,556)

-WPPF & WWF NE317.17TT {16.208. 7621

Bemeasurement of defined benefirs "

-Prusedtax losses (264455087} 347,017, 885)
535300471 334,499 172
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2024 2023

Wil Rupees Rupees

12,2 The amounts recognized in the statement of financial posizion based onthe recent actuarial valuation carried on June 30, 2024 are ax follows

12.2.1 Defined Beneiits Plan
Dregent value of definad benefic oblipation 5,775,841 000,638
5775841 _ SO0V AIH

12.2.2 Change in preseni value of defined benefits obligations

Fresent value of defined benefit abligation atthe beginming of the year 5 009628 4319102
Current servicos cost for the year THD,914 TH9 EO2
Trrareat cost on defined benefic obligation #4065 574,606
Benefitg due but not paid (payabled Z
Benefits paid -
Gaing and losges aviging an plan setflerments J .
Fameasuremeants
Actugrial {gaing) ! logges from changes in dernographic assomptiong d !
Actuarisl [gaing)/ losses from changes in fivancial assumptions 6. Teb} 0495
Expenience adjusiments {721,000} {£72,375)
Prezent value of defimed benefig obligntion 5775841 5009628

1223 Charge forthe year

Currenr garvics cost TR, 014 Teo BD2
Interest cost on defined benefis obligaton 214,065 5731606
Expenses chargsd to profit and oz 1,603,979 1343408

12.2.4 The charge for the vear has been allocated ag follows:

Administrative exponses 1,603,974 1,343 408
1,603,970 1342408
12.2.5 Principal actuarial agsemptions vsed are o3 follows:
Expecred rate of increage in salary level 13.75% WA
aluation discount mate 16% 133

The entity operates a salary based defined benefit plan for the empalyses,
Expected charge o profit and logs acoount for year ended Tune 30, 2024 ameunt to R 1,603,579,

12.2.6 Sensiiivity analysis

A gansitivicy analysis for the above principal actuarial assumptions as of the starement of financial position date showing how the defined beaefit
obligation would have bean affected by changes in the zaid agsumptions is as follows:

Discount rats + 100 bps

5,626,285 4,897 383
Drigcount rate - 100 bps 5938427 5.129.280
Salary increages = L bps 5.943,690 5.131.455
sl it KE 5,618,813 4893413
12.2.7 Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation:
Welghted avesage dursriva - in nurmber of 3 Vears 3 Vears
The rtirement will at most continee - year 2030 2020

12.2.% Description of the risks te the Company
The defined benefit plan exposes the Company to the following msks:
Maortality risks - The risk that the actual morality expenence 15 different, The =ffect is mars pronounced in schemes where the age and service
distribofion is op the higher side.

Final zalary risks - The rizk that the tinal salacy at the time of cessation of service Is greater tham what was assumed. Since the benefitis calevlsicd on
the final salary, the benefit Amount incredee 5 salary Increass,

withdraws] risks - The risk of actusl withdrawals experience is diffesent from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance of the withdrawal risk
varies with the age, service and the entitled benefita of the beneficiany.
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224 2023
Note Rupeaes Rupees
L TRADE ANDOTHER PAYABLES
Trade Payables & others - ungecursd 446,900, 505 1 A0, 891 398
Accrued liabilities 3B.600,178 21027983
Accmed Markop 2030434, T08 TAT 116712
Taxes and Other Gove. Levies payable 245 496,584 329 BhE643
Other linbilities 4419774

5.820.07TkA44 3.533.344. 450

14 UNCLATMED DIVIDEND

Tt represent amaount ofunclaimed dividend pectaining fo pastyears and i3 still un elaimed. Thiz amaount is being fransfared to a seperate bank account,

i SHORT TERM FINANCES
: s 15.1 395,435,334 LB0,040 805

Loang from banking companies-gecured

395,435,334 250,250,805
s LOANS FROM BANKING COMPANIES-SECURED

Albaraka lslamic Bank - -

Mational Bank af Pakistan 1511 IE 435334 2B0,040 803
395435344 ZR0,040 505

1511 Truring the year, the Company has facility of letter of ceadit facility of usance | 150 Days) from Marional Baik of Pakistan of Ra. 388 million at 20%
Cash Margin with expiry of 31-05-3025 for the purpose of importing coal, packing material and machinery parts. The facility is secured agains: 1st

charge of Ba 534 million vver all present and fururs figed agaets of the Company and personal guarantees of tWo sponsor Directors,
All these facilities also include commitment of sponsoiing directors through pledge of shares,

1 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
16.1 Contngencies

16.2 The Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) had lsswed 2 show cavse notice to the company for an moreage n prices of cement doross the
country. As a result of it an amount of Bs, 12 million wag linposed as a penalty. The case is curpently befure the Hooerable High Cowrt. The Court
granted the stay order restricting the CUP to pass sny adverse order(s) agamst the show cause notices issued to the cement manufacturers. Starting daie
of heaning in the Court was 11-11-2008.

16.3 Sales tax sudit was conducred in 2015 and an impugned Hability of Rz, 40.2 million wad determined out ol which Bs, 20 million has been deposiied
by the company under profest. The company fesling aggrieved filed an eppeal before appellate tritamal which is decided at tribumal in fovor of Flying
Cement Company Limited Rs. 16,931 million refunded from department.

164 Tnoome Tax sudit was conducted of rax pear 2016, 2018 and 2019, end also sales tax audit of the year 20016,201 8, 2019 and 2020. The Company have

stay order against audit from Honorable Lehore High Court Lahore.
Commirments

165 Commitments in tespect of outsianding lesfer of credit amoumt to Re.99.450lon (2023 Rs.117.653(M). It imclodes lerer of credit facilities for
procurerment of new cement production plant.raw material and pars of machinery.

024 023
Note Rupees Rupeas
16.6 Lease Payable
Maturity Analysis
Undiscounted Lease Payments are as follows:
Lez= than One Year 11,126,850 J
Lesssthan five years and maore than one vaar 16,119,800 F
More than flve vears. : :
2ik24 el ek
MNaobe Rupess Rupees
7 BROPERTY.PLANT & EQUIPMENT
T ) 17.1 B, 235288138 5391 893 103
Right of Use Aszets 17.6 21588746
17.7 14,917,611,651 12,7383 462 620

Capital Work in Frogeess - af cost

15,174,488,535 21, 175,355,723
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171
Orperating Assets - tangihle
Bullding n Bedrizal Toskasd  Fumidure, Bxbue Talal spenaling
Particninn Lend-Frzehald Pands Fioel and Mochinery ) : Wahicles
byghold igng hstylgtion _ Egvipmen! _ged eqvipment ikt
{fupaes)
b Jeby . 202
Cot 124707500 817 4458 5514845 PRI BEANS 181,38 545 (.
Accumnied depECion =E |60 25100 | RI0.214 | 446, 141,008 13431313 | I 5 |, 357, 142 4800 | £ET.T1R0R1
Pef bk wivn | W50 A7 1711 1M TREANUED  AIRLIT ETED] He587 0BER A% BLEERARSDIA
Mzvament daring Ihe pedod
Phet ook woie s cn Juby 012002 | BTS00 CREeE ) JHM R TRELGIED  40M 1. 547 OBER RS SSRGS
Addion: . - - 04850 . - AN LB
Ciipmak: - -
Cal . .
Acoumyloted degrecilion . z
Depreciaion chage 4741480 L] 157, 368,650 | R 07 Hla 1B
Cleting hed Bnok Vol 1 BETITS0 LHA M 1591556 TERREN  13TRSN bk FaA
& Jene 30, 2013
CoiRmvaued amount | BhTT.500 a7 44 587 L5014 845 RSN DT LR |54 308 BN
Accumriated defeeciohion I&ﬂ:’dﬁ | WLIN ;B 1 laBg i[l':'_‘.@ | 264359 ?121.-‘55
¥ bock woue 134007500 SRR 1531358 1370 545 ] SR R
A Jeky 0, 303
ColReeavnd dman TBTT.500 a7 445300 1514845 RAMEAND T 1R 135 L5Ra MR it athadl
Bocumolored depsecichion 2 163995 541 | SN _ S T2 |8 B 20 | IR | 364389 ;751,038 k
Pt ok woioe 124,707 500 A A M 153055 THRDAEN  IITREN ] HR0 FALLAE B351.28010
Mevamant duing e pericd
Pt ook et o om oy 01 0008 124717.500 A AE 4L 18RS THRIEN: 157850 o] G R 4t BILERLYA
Addrion: - - 13301 864 - - . 13321, 64
Diposals:
sl
Aeoumuated depreciaion
Deprecsifion change 456581 Mesl 15418137 THLLIH BEM pa] 1147160 h'.'i';?hi?;
Clpting el ook Ve 124 717,500 419 5] 41 3441 FANLBELENT 24048104 8,50 2531% 7T B3, 256, 138
& Jang 30, 204
CohWesaund omoyrt 1M NEED LI L] REE. ] 45050 LR 1.0, 140.3% k1T Rl L1 A ESEE
Acoumisted capreciaion - 150584121 L0ELF | TR 1830 1108 130850 pelo e ]
Mt Dok i 171750 A1 B4 44 A481.70 TANIBILAE 1514411 4 AT R [
Aonygi ot el deprecioton 3 - 2 2 F] i1 10 18 10
b 0 | 23
Male Rupees Rupees
172 Depreciation for the vear has been allocated as ander:
Cost of Cawonds Sodd TAT,T55. 458 169 626,340
Adminisirafive expenses 271,171 1113643
169,926,619 170,739,953

17.3  The company have sevalueed its Land, Building and Plant & Machmery, Bevaluation of the asseis was corned out by indipended valuer MYS Halbib
Associates (Pvt) Limited on June 30, 2009, The force sale value of Bs, 6,887, 703,610 comprise of Land is Rs, 124,717,500 Buibding i3 Rs.464 88, 10K
arl Plant and machinery Bs6, 298 500,000 a5 per valeation neport
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17.4

Had e K o favaiualion, the Cerman amournl of B sasats would be as folosn

Furnilure
Lond- Builcing on Plart and Bleciricol Toenls and 4 Todol operafing
Rzl Freghold fteeholdiand  "0O°'  Mockinery  InsataligSion  Equipment | Ond o Wehieles assets
eguigment

AE July O, 2022
Crad IRIFETAE I TI0AST  S.51ABAS 4471474751 WEIMEE LIFL3EA | 524505 FLEIAARS G045 TATEIE
Arcuriksed depraciobion FRLF4AI45 | P05 42,045 795 15.835248 1059945 | 25T 742 19218275 TP b AL
et beook vale 13153746 |VaWE7,505  3.404.650  A4W,I78750 14070072 R 258 BAT 11320 554 4,344,103 .380
Mavemend during the perkod
il Eak wolue 0 on July 01,2022 1373 T4 193FETA05 2404450 4009 IFAFSE 1400077 331358 P44.55T 13388 4,244,103.380
Additiar - 3088 500 - - 308 500
= e te ]S

Gl = = = £ -

Accumuakoied deprecotion
Capracialion choge 2 _387%.752 7273 BO.187.57% 1 a0 07 L[ F 28857 L1305 Ho.7 60244
Clasirg Mel Book Value A 0Ed 46 [P0 00- B33 3533557  BIR IR ATF 15027 ShS TR LB FE RN 10189385 4 la2al1 414
AR Jume 30, 2033
Cost 1Z0ERTA8  FETILAST 5514865 4471424751 J2ATLTES 1AW 1524507 FLE3eA57  5O0AEA16FE
Acpursted dapraciolion |0 A22.997 1902308 742233372 168482 320 1 050, 1 0 | 28E Fy 20386513 Bilg 04714
Hal ook valua 131k 45 170,107, B5] 1,540557 3900191377 15795588 ] S FI0 10185 75 4,143411.514
A8 Juby 00, 2023
Cml TRI23T4s  ZF2TMORE0  SEN4BAS 44671424751 2571785 1391383 152430f 30534659 SMBBIAINE
Accumulated depreciation - vk S - v e S 1T A 1 S < S . | = - R
Hat ook vaius Talaidh  IP0.I07 G55 ASa05hT 3929191379 15,720,565 298,358 TR0 10188348 4142411414
Mavement during the pedod
Miat beck woie as on July 00 2023 il PSS b T P S e L S L B ) 15,729 545 298,258 350 10,188,348 4. k42411814
Acddilions 13,371,684 P332, 844
Dalechion A
Cisposals:

Cixt - - -

Accumuated degrecialion
Depraciofion changs - s T0as! TH.583 428 1,895,495 1 A28 Il Lladddl 4 [
Chyiing et Book Yale 13020040  \Gha0nonh o460 06 4450607 531 23,353,734 168,432 215 ¥4 HA21,685 4067, 360665
Al Dec 31, 2024
Cosl TS025 T4 FATAAN  S5504BE5 4471424751 45,093,449 1,3%1 364 1.524 308 Fh534.65Y  SDEZ IATNGZ
Ao mulated deprecidlion 0425, 158 Z05S2R5T HXA17,.23] M3 715 1,122,731 1,308,390 22512974 94T AN
taak book value IEAEETH IBAI0ASRS  T461908  IASD0VSHT 15355704 248,432 FIEEE] BA21.685 4087 340648
£rnwa mabe of depreciation (%) - 3 2 2 10 10 [I] i

V.5 particulars of immaovable property (e, land & building in the name of company) are as follows,

25-Km. Lilla Interchange Lahore - Islnmabad Motorway, Muangowal Dhstt. Khoshah

Lascation
Usage Fur production parposes
Area 124 Acres 4 Kanal

7.6 Right of Use Assets

Cpening Balance
Additions

July 01, 2023

Depreciation Charged
Jume 30, 2024

Closing Balane

Muote ¥ehicles

22,699, T8
(1,111,043

11,588,746
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17.7 Movement in Capital Waork in Progress

ELE ETE 1L
Auclilitiom Aol fui s T Hoevialuation
j 01-07-2023 AR ki 5 30 AbE- 22 4 I
Building 1,202 T46, 762 Za3 497,972 1,506,254 754
Plant & machinery 11,500, 705 555 3,4921,433,300 2003, THO, G60 - 13, 408 758,594
e ! - = 3
12,783, 462,620 2145331368 2013, TH0.660 14915 013 328

During the year mark wp R T3R8 541,534, 100,593 i3 capitalized at the aversge (hank) meek up rate of 22%,

Movement in Capital Work in Progress

0 I—t:;—::l 22 Lkl Ahalisn tancu eyl it J-II—I.IJ:-;I'IIJ-
Building | 624 408 273132354 = = 1. 282,756,762
Plant & machinery HASQ060_ 197 2.6 ] 5 0 - 11,500, 705 H5H
D R68. 6R4.605 2014, 77RAOILS - - 12783 462,620
2024 2023
Mute Rupecs Rupees
178 CAPITAL WORK IN FROGRESS
Building 1,506, 254,734 1,282, 756,762
Plamt & rachinery 13,411,356,917 11,500,705 K58
14.917.611.651 12,783 462620
I8 LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS
Zecunity deposits-WAPDIA 32.8K0.151 32880151
31880151 32 880,151
18.1 These are securtty deposits held with WAPDA and de not carry any markup arangement.
19 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores & Spares 63873387 H7 3131054
Furniaee oil, coal & |lubricans 0,967,242 63,386,742
134,540,629 130,699, 796
20 STOCK IN TRADE
Raw & Packing material 0504 R4 2 TR ADG, 115
Work in process 25 1,0MF7, 229,724 645,119,723
Finished goods 25 147 505 895 5,940 479
1215420461 TTE 65,317
Stock in trade is recorded a1 lower of cost or net realizable value.
21 TRADE DEBTS- considerad good though uisecunad 192,495 K96 1T 0T 68
12 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS & OTHER RECEIVABLES
Advances o suppliers - Unsecured, considered good $6,143,070 1,314 620
Advances 1o sl - Unsecured, considered good Gl B D00 2000
Margin held by banks B A09.300 o) 03,007
Advanee income lax 127,256,723 161,167,732
Sales tax & excise duty tax year 2013 To, 991 DR 20,000, 000
Other advances 215842590 374 802 601

474 8T0. 7616 (1 7,50 860
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x|

24

25

CAEH AND BANK BALAMCES
Ini Hand
At Banks- current dccournts

SALIES
Gross Sales
Local - Cement

Less :
Bales Tex
Exvize Duty
Trade dizcount

NET SALES

COST OF SALES

Raw Material Consumed

Fumace Oil. Desel, Coal and Lubricants consumed
Packing harerial consomed

Stores and Spares consumed

Balaries , Wages and Benefitg

Electrcity

Exfraction Charoes and povenunent cherges
Repair and Maintenange

Wehicle Running Expenges

Commumcation

Entertainment

Printing and Stationery

Tmvellng and Convevance

Oither Marmfacturing Expenses
Depreciation

Work Tn Process
Opening grock

Cloging gtock

Cost of Gonds Manofactured
Finithed Guoods

Opening stock
Closing stock

Cost of Sales

Mote

17.2

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
26,604,422 10,341,721
109 690,371 52 004, B6S

136,204,797 63 346 58

172885 950 5,729 080,
6,172 885,050 5,719,080,532
1026550, 155 024862773

620,708,000 560,69 1000
L 636258, 155 1,485 553,773

167 380,49 142,940 962
1,407, 712,191 L A78185.637
330,767 498 4] Be9, 527
I9.5TH,THI 20,723,760
148187 825 138 0TE R0
221R.802.933 1.325,595 207
147,717,641 50,667,500
BlL040 3445734
12,158,799 la 162152
77,190 #6271
271,770 238737
S0R,654 1,309,566
1,593,142 1.660,038
1,875,441 4.568,830
167, 755458 163,626,340
4,641,932 45% 3781573608
LS, 119,723 333.533.215
(LT 229, 7243 LSRR NP
(362,110,001 (111,586,508
4,279,822 458 3630387100
sd.ﬂlﬂ,d?j 710926687
(147 595 89 54 549 474
(92,6064 Liv) 16. 143 188
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Flying Cement Company Timnited
Motes To The Financial Statemeainis
For The Yeor Ended tume 300 2024

2024 2023
Narge HRupees Enpees
36 pBISTRIBUTION COST

Salarizs, Wazes and Benefits 20,084,380 | B.052. 740
Fent, Rates and Taxes 0,400 £7.200
Travelling, Convevancs and Vehicle Ruaning 91,078 53,663
Communication 26,230 13409
Electricity, Water & Sui Gas 27,920 25,173
Advertisemnent ER0,000 445 040
Entertamment & hiscellanzous 26,559 1,751

20 987367 1R.772.976

3 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, Wages and Benefirs 271 40,943,171 31629476
Direroors’ Remuneration 32400, D4k 26,850,000
Rent, Rates and Taxes - 358490000
Electricity, Water & Sui Gag 168,885 1.347,658
Legal and Professional - 400,000
Communication 560,695 1485771
Charity and Donation 27.2 599,500 814700
Fee and Bubscription 6,918,401 6295370
Tnsurance 12,395,386 5,828,957
Anditors' Remuneration 273 3,129,000 2392500
Fine & Penaltizs 8,429 36283
Entertamment 20,644 16,010
Depreciation 17.2 2171071 111,643
Drepreciation on Right of Use Assets 17.6 1. L11.043 -

171

— | e A— - R 111+

Salanies, Wazes and Benefits includes Es. 1603979 (2023: Rs, 1,343 404/ in respect of pratuity.

17.2 The Company has paid the chanty and donation of Es. 899, 3000-(2023; R 814,700v-1 and dicectors ortheir spouses wepe not interested in the donee.
el Andirors” Remuneration
Audit Fee 260,000 1,630,000 !
Code of Comporate Govemance 300,000 240,000
Half wearly review S15.HMH 472 500
Ot of pocket expenses 144,000 30,000

_— 3120000 259%500

s OTHER EXPENEES
Warkers' Profit Pasticigstion Fund 17.540.030 19,762,637
Warkers' Welfare Fund 6,779,211 5,74T7.318
24619241 25,509,955
29 FINANCE COST
Mark up 1T4.103,910 167,734 558
Leasing Mackup 4,095 948
Leaze Expenses 87,004
Bank Chargog and Com mission FJI3TH TI3.230
I ek o014 S v | i 1
3n
OTHER INCOME
Sale of Trees, Serap and damaged stock 181,698,535 SLTAT 400
Sale of Agrieultoral Products 30.1 147,633,304
G CRve G S S
1 Seles of Agricultural Prodocis 454,256,321
Parchase of Agricultoral Froduets {H6.623.017)
Net Profit 147,633,304 -
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34

2024 2023
TAXATION Mate Rupees Rupees
Prior vear Taxarion 17,075,175 3201,877
Current 6d, 680,143 66,405,023
Dreferred 2,618,347 SB.BI0.204

— IHJ3RJ66E ______ UR 407104
HMumerical reconciliation berween the average tax rate and epplicable tax rate has not been presented as the company is subject to the provisions of
miniraum tax under section |13 and altemate corporate tax under secrion 113 C of the Inecome Tag Crdinance, 2001,

The applicable moome tax rare for subsequent years beyond tax year 2019 was reduced to 29% on account of changes made to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 through Finance Act 2020, Therefore, deferred tax is computed af the sate of 29% applicable to the pericd when temporary
differences are expected o be reversed ¢ utilized,

EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE-BASIC
There i3 o dilurive effect on the eamings per share, and bagic earnings per share i3 baged on:

Frofit / {Loss) befure taxation (R— . 3 I I | . L ) - O
Profit/ (Losz) after taxation 51446770 3T1.245.680
{Mo. of ghares)
Weighted awesagr number of ordinary shares — O T T— . . 1111111
(Rupees)
Earnings/| Loss) per share (before tax) - Basic R L
Earnings/i Logs) per share (pffertax) - Basic S | |« S | . 1

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Humber of emplovess at the end of year 553 340
Average number of employees during the year 519 505

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
Relared parties of the company comprise associarsd underakings. direcros, key employess and management personnel, Degail of transactions with
relsted pacties except remuneration and benefits to directors and management personnel under their remms of employment. are a5 undes

Matore of rrangaction

Relationship 204 2023
Rupees Fupeses
Flving Papes Tndustries Limited Argociae - 607.551,950




Flying Cement Company Timnited
Motes To The Financial Statemeainis
For The Yeor Ended tume 300 2024

2024 2023
ki) Year end balances Mntes Rupees Rupees
Pavable to related parties. 10 934 678,914 906,730,654
g All rrangactions with relered parfies have been carried ouf cg cormerciel rerms and conditions.
- Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into rransactiond of have srmngesment ! agtesment 1n place,
344

The maximom balancewas outstanding as at 30th June 2023 shown in note above.

Mame Eagis of nssocintion Aggregare o of
Fhareholding (Directly or Indirectiy}
: 7 : ; e g ; P 20
Flylng Papee Industrics Limited Associgfed Company - Common 23% shareholding m Flying Paper Industries Limited and 26%

share holding shareholding in Flymg Cement Company Limited

Associated Company - Cormmon
share helding

4% shareholding in Flying Board & Paper Products Limived ancd

Fiplig Do Fapes Frodusialdoited 31% shareholding in Flying Cement Company Limited

e shareholding in Zaman Daper & Board il (Mivate) Limited
and 31% shareholding in Flying Cement Company Limited

Associated Company - Corfignon

Zaoa Haperdc Boxd Ml @ulvaieb Edmlied. =0 Sop coes

Associaied Company - Common
share holding

41% shareholding in Poly Paper & Board Mills (Private) Limnited

e e e e i and 26% sbaseholding in Flying Cernent Cainpany Limited

33 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES T CASH FLOW ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

21
A ;
Short Term Finance | Long term loan Curmu.l. iy of “wmt‘fd s Diirector Loan
Lang Torm Loan taking
Balance as on 01 July 2023 281,040,805 4,081 827,193 1M 681,920 ke, TIY, 054 57,035,933
Inerease ¢ (Decrease)
Short Term Finanes 115,394,529
Long term finance (502,142,073} 3, 503,068
Curremt Maturity of long term loan 37,938, 90l
Associated Undertaking
Total comprehensive Profit fos the year
Director loan
Balance as on 30 June 2024 5435334 3.5H9.645,120 1,308, 154, % P34,6THY 14 57,035,933
023
Short Term Fingnce  Long term loan O LIS AS . ATl KhAlE, | i R
Larng Term Loun tuking
Balance as on 0] Jl.li}' 21 162,751,637 02 007317 1574, 724,743 A0 ROT 0 57035933
Inerease  (Decrease)
Short Term Finance 117289168
Long tenm finance | AWK G b
Current Maturity of long term loan (386.217.743)
Associated Undenaking 586,932,350
l'otal comprehensive Profit for the vear
Director loan -
Balance as on 30 Junc 2023 2RO AT RIS ERUUE (N b | CUERT PR G, T4 D54 7,035 633
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361

FINAMCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company finances i3 operarons through equity. bottowings and management of working capiral with a view (0 maiotain &b approgriate mix
between various sowrces of fingnee (o minimize nak, The Company follows an effective cash matagement and planning policy and mainiaing
flexibility in fundimg by keeping committed credit lines evailable. Market risks are managed by the Company through the adoption of appropriate
policied fo cover currency misks and mieredt rafe nisks,

The Company has exposures 2o the following risks from its use of financisl ingrrunents:
- Credit righ

- Liguidity rizk

- Marhet rigk

Cradit risk

Credit risk 15 the risk representing accounting loss thar would be recognized at the reporting dare if one party to a financial instrument will fail to
discharge an obligation or its failure to perform duties under the conrract as confracred. Concentration of credit rish #rizes when a number of
counterparties are engaged in sitmilar business activities or beve similar economic fesrures that would cause their ability o meet contractual
obligations that iz susceptible o changes in economic. politizal or other conditions, Concentration of cradin risk indicates the relative sensitiviry of the
Company s perfonmance to developments affacring s parricular industry. The maxinmm exposurs to eredif risk af the reporting date i3 a3 follows:

The company's Ceadit rigk exposures ace catagorized under the following heads:
The carrying amount of financial asgets repregents the maximuom credif exposure. The maximum exposurs to credrt gk at reporting date eas:

2024 2023
Mote Rupees HRupees
Trade debrors 1 192,495 89 172,087 368
Advanees, deposity, prepayments and other receivables 32 234,479 890 435,517,608
Cagh at banks 13 Ly, 690,371 52,004,865
Long termy gecurity deposits 13 32.BRO.151 I ERO.ISI]

— L R T | — e
The trade debis at the swatement of financial position date are 31l domestic debts, Forthermges, credit quality of costomers 15 gsgeased taliing inta
congideration their financial position and previous dealmgs and on that basi2, indivadual eredit limits are set. Moreover. the menagement regulazly
moniors and reviews customers’ coedit sxposure. Accordmgly, the Company 18 not exposed o any significant credit misk.

The zging of wade receivables at the repoming

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Mot past dus 44,742 716
Parr due | -30 days 62311741 036723246
Past due 31-60 doys 310,970 37,859,221
Past dur 61-50 days 2,435,928 15,487,863
Creer 90 deys 127,600,106 10325242

—_— 193689755 1TINRTIAN
Advanees. depogite, prepayvments aod other recervable includes stadf advacnes, margin held with the Banks and advances to Azsocisted Companied.
Considering the financial postion of related paries and credit quality of the Institution, the Comgpany s exposare to coedit risk = nof sigaificant.

Lomg term depusite have beén mainly placed with supplisrs of electrieity, gas and telseomimunication seovives, Condidermg the finsncial posision and
credit quality of the instrtuttons. the Company = exposure to credit risk is not significant.




362 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall doe. The Company’s approach to manage
liquidity is to cnswre as far as possible tv always have sufficient liquidity to mect s Babilitics when due. The Company is not materally
expoacd to liquidity risk as substantially obligations / commitments of the Company are short term in nature and are restricted to the extent of
available hguidity. In addition, the Company has obtaincd finance facilitics from varows commercial banks o moect any deficit, f required to
mect the short term liquidity commitments.

The following are the contractual maturity analyzis of financial

4
Morc than & Muorc than 2
Carrying amouni Sl ek Within & months months and wpis 1 Moo e 1 yewe wyears znd upio 5
fows and upio 2 years
year years
Loag tesm fnances 5.521,799 456 5521, 799456 353,145 (00 TIE 000 1402921008 3426932456
Trade and other payables 3,494,139 351 3494139551 3494139551 - - -
Accrued Markup 2000434 708 2030434708 2,030,474 708 - - -
Shor term borruwimgs 305435334 0543534 305435334 - - -
LUnclaimed dividend 56,526 59526 59,526 - - -
I 1,841 868 575 10841 B68575  A273. 218119 T8, 797,000 | AD2 921000 3426912 456
N
c i More than & Maorc than 2
Carrying amouani i Within & months months and epio 1 Hﬂmﬂui?ﬂ:jﬂnudmi
Hows and spie 2 years
yeur yeuars
Loag tesm fnances 6,0, 733,594 5,040, 733 554 SRS AIE3ST 920,755 964 116,167 287 4417571986
Trade and other payables 2732160 764 2T3EI61T64 2732 161,764 - - -
Accrued Markup 471,294,043 471,294,045 471,294,043 - - -
Short lerm bormuwings 230,040, 205 280,040,805 220,040 805 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 56,526 59536 50,526
9524 289,732 QSMIRTI2 4069354 495 0,755,964 116167287 4417971 986

363 Market Risk

Markct rigk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fhectuate 85 a result of changes n market inferest rates or the market price
dise to chanpe in crodit rating of the sswer or the instrument, chanpe in market sentiments, speculative activigies, supply and demand of
securtics and liquidity in the market. The Company is exposcd to currency nisk and interest rates only.

3631  Imterest rate risk
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing fimancial mstruments werc:

Effcctive rate in % Currylug Amomst
(Rupecs)
0z4 023 24 2023
Financial Liahilitics
Variable Rate instruments:
Short term borrowings 24255 23,98 395,435,334 280,040,805
Long term borrowings 24005 7348 4,930,084, 609 5,076,957,707

36.3.1.1 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The company docs not sccount for any fixed rate financial asscts and labilitics at fair valse throogh profit and losa. Thercfore a change in
intcrest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit and loss accoumt.

36.3.1.2 Cash flow scnsitivity analysis for varions rate instroments

A change of 100 basis points in intcreat rate at the reporting date would have increased ( (decreased) profit or Toss by amount shown below.
This analy=is assumes that all other variables, in a particular foreign currency rate (if any), remains constant. The analysis is performed on the
=amc basis as for the provious year-

Ropecs Rupees
Imcrease Profit Deercase Profit
As at June 30, 2024 53,155,199 (53255197
Ax at Junc 30, 2023 {53.560.985) 33,360 885

The scrsitivity analysis preparcd is not necessanly indicative of the offect on prodit £ (loss) for the year and asscts / labilitics of the Company.

100
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3632

3633

36.3.3.1

364

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair valuc or future cash Aows of a financial instroment will fuectuate bocause of changes in markct prices (other
than thosc ariging from interest rate risk or currency risk). The company & not cxposed to any price risk as there are no financial instruments at
the reporting date that are scasitive o price flucizations.

Corrency Risk

Forcign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asscts or liabilitics will fluctuate due to change in forcign exchanpe rates. [t ariscs
mainly where receivable and payable oxist due to transactions entered into forcign curmencics. The company i exposcd to cumency sk on
import of machincry mainly dominated in US dollars. The Company's cxposure to forcign currency risk for US dollars is as follows:

2024 2023
Rupecs Rupees
Outstanding letter of credits 305435334 280,040,805
Avcrage rate 1TR.53 245.71
Reporting datc rate 17T 28658

Sensitivity Analysis

At reporting date, ifthe PER had strengthencd by 10% against the foreign cuwrmencics with all other vaniables held constant, post-tax profit fior
th year would have been higher by the amount shown below, mainly as a resalt of met forcign exchange gain on translation of oulstanding leticr
of credits.

The effcct on profit and Inss account is 39,543,533 28,004, 80

The weakening of PKR against forcign curncncics would have an cqual but oppositc impact on the post tax profit. The sensitivity analysis
preparcd is ot nocessanly indicative of the offects on (loss ) profit for the year and assctaliabilitics of the Company.

Fair valuc of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to scll an asset or paid to transfer a Bability in an orderly transaction hetween market participanis
at the measurement date. Underdying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the company is a poing concemn and there is no ntention
of regquircment to curtail materially the scale of its opcrations or to underiake a transaction on adverse torms.

The fair vahse of financial agsets and Kabilitics traded in active markets ic. listod cquity shares are based on the quoted market prices at the
close of trading on the date of statement of financial position. The quoted market prices wsed for financial asscts held by the Company is current
hid price. A financial instrumcat is repgarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices arc readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dcaler, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual or regolarly ocowrming market transactions
on an arm's length hasis.

IFRS 13, Fair Value Mcasurements' requires the Company to classify fir value measurcments using a fair value hicrarchy that reflcets the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hicranchy has the following levels:

- Oueoted prices (unadjosted) in active markets for identical asacts or liabilitics that the entity can acccss at the measurement date
(lewed 1)

- Inpusts other than quoted prices inchsded within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liahbility, cither directly or indircctly
(lewel 2)

E Unoheervable inputs for the assct or Rability (level 3)

"The Company has not disclosed fair values of these financial asscts and liabilitics as these are for short term or reprice over short term.
Therefore, carmying amounts of material asscis and liahilitics arc reasonzble approximation of fair value.




Er)

Capital Risk Management

The Company’s prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide adoguate
returns for sharcholders and bencfits for other stakcholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust capital strocture, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharcholders, issue now shares or scll

as=cls to pedoce debht

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as debt divided by
total capital employed. Total capital employed is calculated as oquity as shown in the statement of financial position plus dobt.

2024 023
Rupecs Rupecs
Total Borrowings 4.963,617,790 5,327,269 399
Total Bquity 12.343,563.562 12,291,521.978
Total Capital Employed 17.307,181.352 17,618,791 377
Crcaring Ratio 18.68% 30.24%
38 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
Chicl Exceutive Exeewtive Directors Mon Executive Directors Exccutives
2024 2023 2024 2 024 2023 2024 2023
Rupees Rupecs Rupees Rupces Rupees Rupces Rupees Rupces
Managerial remaneration 76,000 B76,000 10454545 214,400,001 - 322773 18900973
Medical allowance 7600 87,600 1L M5455 2 440, M9 = 3117170 190,097
P63 600 963,600 31,400.000 Do, RS0, 0000 - 35,500,000 20791070
Number of persons 1 1 1 1 45 E¥
5,500,000
381 Mo amount was paid to dircetors for atiending the Board of Dircctors moecting.
19 PRODUCTION CAPACITY
Installed Capacity Actual Prodoction
2024 | 2023 2024 Il 2023
Tons Tons Tons Tons
Clinker [ 8, (KD 311,624 302,040
Cement T2, M0 720,000 321,500 302460

Shortfall in production i due to prevailing market condition and old plant
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024 2023

Mot Ruopees Rupocs
Cash Flows from Operating Activitics
40 Profit ! {Loss) for the period - before taxation 333 831435 369,742 TR2
Adjustment for:
Diepreciation 17037672 170,739,983
Provigion for Ciratuity 1,603,979 1,343 408
Finance cost I'TR.599.228 168,507, TRE
351,240,879 340,591,172
GR5.072.314 710,333,791
(Inercase) / deercase in current asscis
{Increasc) in Stoncs, sparcs & loose tools (4,140,833) 08,965, 800
{Increase) [ Decrease in Stock-in-trade (436455, 144) (169, 140 868)
({Increase) / decrease in Trade deis {20, 408.5ET) 1,441 488
{Increase) [ Decrease in Advances, deposits, prepayments and other reccivables 143,129 194 T4,620,146
(31T ATS310) 5,892,566
{Increasc) [ decrcase in currcnt lahilitics
Incrzase / (Decreasc) in dircctor and Sharcholder loan (160.533,64T) {83,818,545)
Increase (Decreasc) in Trade and other Payahles 2. 286,726.394 1,374,845 535
1,125,892,747 1. 289,006,989
Cash generated from operations 2.493,089.751 2 005,253 517

41 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authonized for issue on October 03, 2024 by the Board of Directors of the Company.
42 GENERAL

- Figures in the financial statements have been rounded off to the noarest nupee.

- Cormesponding figures have hoen rearranged and reclassified, wherever nocessary, for the purposes of comparizson

Hw@wﬂ %me | = =

Director Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 31* Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Flying Cement Company
Limited (the "Company"”) will be held an 24 October 2024 at 09:00 hours at (Thursday) at Leeds Banguet Hall,
343-D-1, Nespak Society, Lahore to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To confirm the minutes of the last General Meeting held on 28-10-2023.

2. To receive, consider and adopt audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June
2024 together with Directors’, Auditors’ Report and Chairman’s Review thereon.

3. To appoint auditors and to fix their remuneration for the year ending 30 June 2025.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4. Increased in Authorized Capital:

To consider and, if thought fit, increase the authorize share capital of the Company from Rs. 8,000,000,000/-
(Pak Rupees Eight Billion) to Rs. 10,000,000,000/- (Pak Rupees Ten Billion), by creation of 200,000,000 {Two
Hundred Million) new ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- (Pak Rupees Ten) each, and approve the conseguential
amendments in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, and in that connection to pass
the following resolutions as Special Resolutions, with or without modification:

“RESOLVED THAT the authorized share capital of the Company be and is hereby increased
from Rs. 8,000,000,000/- (Pak Rupees Eight Billion), divided into 800,000,000 Ordinary Shares
of Rs. 10/- each, to Rs. 10,000,000,000/- {Pak Rupees Ten Billion), divided into 1,000,000,000
Ordinary Shares of Rs, 10/- each.

FUTHER RESOLOVED THAT, as a consequence of the said increase in the authorized share
capital of the Company:

Clause ¥V of Memorandum of Association of the Company be and is hereby replaced
accordingly to read as follows

“The Authorized Capital of the Company is Rs. 10,000,000,000/- (Rupees Ten Billion Only)
divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each. The Company has powers from
time to time to increase, consolidate, sub-divide, reduce or otherwise re-organise its capital
and to divide the shares in the capital for the time being into several classes in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017."

Article 7 of Articles of Association of the Company be and is hereby replaced accordingly to
read as follows:

“The Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 10,000,000,000/- (Rupees Ten Billion Only) divided
into 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each”

FUTHER RESOLOVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer or Company Secretary be and are
hereby singly authorized and empowered to do all acts, deeds and things, take any and all
actions as may be necessary or expedient to complete all legal formalities, and to sign forand
behalf and in the name of the Company and to file, whether with any authority or regulator or
other person, any and all such applications, documents, declarations, agreements, deeds,
undertakings and other papers as may be necessary or proper or expedient or incidental, for
the purposes of implementing the aforesaid resolutions, and to do all such acts, deeds and
things as may be ancillary and/or incidental to the foregoing and/or as may be necessary to
fully achieve the objects of the resolutions aforesaid, including, without limiting the generality
of the foregoing, obtaining any approvals (if required) and carrying out any filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ar other regulatory bodies.”
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Ratify and Approval of Related Parties Transaction

5. Further to get effect of the Board's recommendation regarding ratify / approval of the related parties

transaction, It is proposed that the following Resolutions be considered and passed as Special Resolutions,
with or without modification in the upcoming Annual General Meeting schedule to held on October 24,
2024:

To ratify / approve Related Parties Transaction for the Year ended June 30, 2024;

"RESOLVED That pursuant to the powers conferred upon the Board of Directors of Flying Cement Company
Limited (the Company) by the members of the Company through Special Resolution passed in their Annual
General Meeting held on October 28, 2023, the Related Party Transactions made during the financial year
ended June 30, 2024 and as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby ratified,
approved and confirmed in all respects.

(Attached to this Motice is a Statement of Material Facts covering the above-mentioned Special Business, as

required under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017).

ANYOTHER BUSINESS:
6. To transact any other business with permission of the Chair.

By order of the Board

Lahore b

Dated: October 03, 2024
Shahid Ahmad Awan

Company Secretary

Notes:

1.

Closure of Share Transfer Books:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 18, 2024 to October 24, 2024
(both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of Share Registrar M/s THK Associates (Pvt.)
Ltd., Plot No. 32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, D.H.A. Phase VI, Karachi by the closed of business on
October 17, 2024, will be considered in time for attending the Annual General Meeting. A member

entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint any other member as his/her proxy to attend and
vote on his/her behalf, The instrument appointing proxy must be received at Company’s Registered Office
63-A, Sher Khan Road Lahore Cantt., duly stamped and signed not later than 48 hours before the meeting.
Proxy Form may also be downloaded from the Company’s website: www.flyingcement.com

CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular
Mo.1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

A, For Attending the Meeting:

. In case of individuals, the account holders or sub account holders and / or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration detail are uploaded as per the
Regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original Computerized
Mational Identity Card [CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

Il In case of corporate entity, the Board of Director’'s resolution / power of attorney with the
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier at
the time of the meeting.




B. For Appointing Proxies:

l; In case of individuals, the holder or sub account holder and / or the person whose securities
are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall
submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

II. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC
Numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

.  Attested copies of CNIC or Passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

IV.  The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original Passport at the time of the meeting.

V. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Director’s resolution / power of attorney with
specimen signature shall be submitted {unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy
form to the Company.

2. Video Conference Facility
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, the shareholders residing in a city other than
Lahore, and holding at least 10% of the total paid up share capital may demand the Company to provide
the facility of video —link for participating in the meeting. The demand for video-link facility shall be
received by the Share Registrar at the address given herein above at least 7 days prior to the date of the
meeting. The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5 days
before the date of Annual General Meeting along with complete information necessary to enable them to
access such facility.

| / we of being member of Flying Cement
Company Limited, holder of Ordinary shares as per Register Folio#f/CDC Account i /
participant ID # hereby opt for Video Conference facility at

3. E-voting and Postal Ballot
The members of the Company are hereby notified that pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations,
2018 amended through Notification dated December 05, 2022, issued by the Securities and Exchange
commission of Pakistan ("SECP"), Wherein, SECP has directed all the listed companies to provide the right
to vote through electronic voting facility and voting by post to the members on all businesses classified as
special business,
Accordingly, members of the Company will be allowed to exercise their right to vote through electronic
voting facility and voting by post for the special business in its Annual General Meeting to be held on
Cctober 24, 2024 at 09:00 hours, in accordance with the requirements and subject to the conditions
contained in the aforesaid Regulations,
For the convenience of the members, ballot paper is annexed to this notice and the same is also available
on the Company's website.
Procedure for E-Voting:

a) Details of the e-voting facility will be shared through an e-mail with those members of the
Company who have their valid CNIC numbers, cell numbers, and e-mail addresses available in
the register of members of the Company by the close of business of 17-10-2024.

b) The web address, login details, will be communicated to members via email. The security
codes will be communicated to members through 5MS from web portal of e-voting service
provider,

c) Identity of the members intending to cast vote through e-voting shall be authenticated
through electronic signature or authentication for login.

d} E-woting lines will start from 22-10-2024, 09:00 hours and shall close on 23-10-2024 at 05:00
hours. Member can cast their votes any time in this period. Once the vote on a resolution is
cast by a Member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

Procedure for Voting Through Postal Ballot:
The members shall ensure that duly filled and signed ballot paper along with copy of CNIC should reach the
Chairman of the meeting through post on the Company's registered address, at 63-4, Sher Khan Road,
Lahore Cantt., one day before the Annual General Meeting schedule on October 24, 2024 during working
hours, The signature on the ballot paper shall match with the signature on CNIC.

4. Change of Address:
Members are requested to notify any change in their addresses immediately. Shareholders are requested
to provide above mentioned information/dacuments to (i) respective Central Depository System (CDS)
participants and (i} in of physical securities to the Share Registrar of The Company.
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5. Transmission of Annual Audited Financial Statements:
The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide 5SRO No.383(1)/2023 dated march 21, 2023, has
allowed listed companies to circulate their Annual Audited Financial Statements (i.e. The Annual Balance
Sheet and profit or Loss Account, Auditor's Report and Directors’ Report) to its member through QR
enabled code and web-link, which is given bellow:

Web-link: QR

hittp:/ fwww flyingcement com/pdf/2023-2024/annual _report2024 pdf

Agenda No.4 of Notice of AGM

Increased in Authorized Capital:

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the special business given in agenda item No. 4 of the
Motice, to be transacted at the 31st Annual General Meeting of Flying Cement Company Limited (the
“Company”) to be held on October 24, 2024,

In arder to cater for future increase in the issued and paid up share capital of the Company / issuance of
shares, the authorized share capital of the Company needs to be enhanced.

In the light of the same and for future potential issuance of shares, the Board of Directors of the Company has
resolved (subject to obtaining the approval of the shareholders of the Company) that the authorized share
capital of the Company be increased from Rs. §,000,000,000/- (Pak Rupees Eight Billion), divided into
800,000,000 (Eight Hundred Million) ordinary shares of Rs, 10/- (Pak Rupees Ten) each, to Rs.
10,000,000,000/- {Pak Rupees Ten Billion), divided into 1,000,000,000 (One Billion) ordinary shares of Rs, 10/-
(Pak Rupees Ten) each. Accordingly, the amount of increase in the authorized share capital of the Company
will be equal to Rs. 2,000,000,000/- (Pak Rupees Twao Billion), comprising 200,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.
10/- [Pak Rupees Ten Only) each.

For the purposes of the same, corresponding amendments are required to be made to the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company to reflect the increase in the authorized share capital of the Company,
as detailed in the proposed resolutions appearing in the notice of the general meeting.

The above requires the approval of the shareholders / members of the Company, through special resolutions,
in accordance with Article 25 of the Articles of Association of the Company, read with Section 85 of the
Companies Act, 2017.

The Board of Directors of the Company has confirmed that the requisite alterations to the Memaorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company are in line with the applicable provisions of the law and regulatory
framework.

The Directors of the Company have no personal interest in the resolutions, except in their capacity as
shareholders of the Company to the extent of their shareholdings.

Agenda No.5 of Notice of AGM
Ratification and approval of the related party transactions carried out during the year ended June 30, 2024:

Further to get effect of the Board's recommendation regarding ratify / approval of the related parties
transaction, It is proposed that the Resolutions mentioned in Agenda 5 be considered and passed as Special
Resolutions, with or without modification in the upcoming Annual General Meeting schedule to held on
October 24, 2024
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Ballot paper for voting through post for Special Business at the Annual General Meeting to be held on (Wednesday) October 24,
2024 at 09:00 hours at Leeds Bangquet Hall, 343-D-1, Nespak Society, Lahore

Designated email address of the Chairman at which the duly filled in ballot paper may be sent: cosecretary@flyingcement.com

Mame of shareholder/joint shareholders

Registered Address

Folio No./CDC Participant / Irmvestor 1D with sub-account Mo.

Number of shares hekd

CHIC, NICOP/Passport Mo, [in case of foreigner}{copy to be attached}

Additional Infermation and enclosures
{In case of representative of hody corporate, corperation and Federal Government. )

Name of Authorzed Signatory:
CHIC, NICOP/Passport Mo, (in case of foreignerjof Authorized Signatory [copy to be attached)
Ifwe hereby exercise my/our vota in respect of the following resolutions thraugh postal ballet by conveying my/four assent or dissent
to the following resolution by placing tick (V) mark in the appropriate box below (delete as appropriate):
*“Special Resolutions™

.liﬁll;lﬁ -ﬂ.i:rld.;-l.l.:m ?Hn.'
4, "RESOLVED THAT the authorized share capital of the Company be and is hereby increased from Rs. B,000,000,000/- (Pak Rupees Elght Billion), divided into B00,000,000
Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10/- each, to Rs. 10,000,000,000/- [Pak Rupees Ten Billion), divided into 1,000,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10/- each.
FUTHER RESOLOVED THAT, a5 a consequence of the said increase in the authorized share capital of the Company:
Clause V of Memorandum of Assodation of the Company be and is hereby replaced accordingly to read as follows
“Thar Authorized Capital of the Company s Rs. 10,000,000,000/= (Aupoes Ten Billion Only) divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/= sach. The Company has
powers from time to time to Increase, consolidate, sub-divide, reduce or otherwise re-organkse its capital and to divide the shares In the capital for the time being
into several classes in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2007
Article 7 of Articles of Association of the Company ke and is hereby replaced accordingly to read as follows:
“The Share Capital of the Company ks Rs. 10,000,000,000/- [Rupees Ten Billion Only) divided inte 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs, 10/- each®
FUTHER RESOLOVED THAT the Chief Exacutive Officer or Company Secretary b and are hereby singly authorizad and smpowered to do all acts, doeds and things, take
any and all actiens as may be necessary or expedient o complete all legal formalities, and to sign for and behalf and in the name of the Company and to file, whether
with any authority or regulatos or other person, any and all such applications, documents, declarations, agreements, deeds, undertakings and other papers as may be
nacessary or proper or expedient or incidental, for the purposes of impl ting the af id resolutions, and to do all such acts, deads and things as may be
ancillary and/or incldental te the foregoing and/or a5 may be mecessary to fully achieve the objects of the resolutions aloresald, Including, without lImiting the
generality of the foregoing, obtaining any approvals (if reguired) and carrying out any filings with the Secorities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan or other
regulatory bodles,
5. Toratify / approve Related Parties Transaction for the Year ended June 30, 2024;
“RESOLVED That pursuant to the pewers conferred upan the Board of Directors of Flying Cement Company Lirnited (the Company) by the members of the Company
through Spacial Resolution passed in their Annual General Measting held on October 28, 2023, the Related Party Transactions made during the financial year ended
Jume 30, 2024 and as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed in alll respects.

&r. Mature and Description of resalutions ['We assent to the 1/We dissent 1o the

Mo, Rezalutions Resolutions
Sl : _Special Resolutions™ FOR). ] C(ACAINET)

1. As per AGM Agenda item No.4 (as given abowve)

2. As per AGM Agenda item No.5 [as given above)

Signature of shareholder/Proxy holder/Authorized Signatory
(in case of corporate entity, please affix company stamp)
Place: Date:

MNOTES:

1 Dully filled postal ballet should be sent to chairman of Flying Cerment Company Limited at Reglstered Office 63-A Sher Khan Road, Lahore Cantt, Or  e-mall at

cosecretaryiiflyingcement.com

2. Copy of CNIC should be enclosed with the postal ballot form.

3. Pastal ballat farms should reach chairman of the meeting on or belore 23-10-2024(last date of receiving postal ballot]. Any postal ballot received alter this date,

will not be cansiderad for vating.

L In case of a representative of a body corporate, corporation or Federal Government, the Ballot Paper form must be accompansed by a copy of the GNIC of an
authorized person, an attested copy of Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authorzation Letter etc, In accordance with Section(s] 138 or 13% af the
Companies Act, 2017 as applicable. In the case of foreign body corporate etc., all documents must be attested by the Consul General of Pakistan having
jurisdiction aver the mamber.

Signature an postal balkot should match with signature on CHIC.
&, Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated, over written baBot paper will be rejected.

LA

108



Share Price Sensitivity Analysis
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Jul-23 | Aug-23 | Sep-23 | Oct-23 | Mow-23 | Dec-23 | lan-24 | Feb-24 | Mar-24 | Apr-24 | May-24 | Jun-24 |
Share FI?I:‘E‘! 612 | 5.85 5.55 559 T.25 7.86 7.0z 6.79 6.85 3.1 9.12 872

The Companys’ market capitalisation stood at Bs 5.470 billion, depicting a increase of (7.63)% as compared to last year whereas KSE-100
index rise from 41,453 to 75,5735 at the end of the year registering a increase of (82)% as compared to last year,

Companys' share price direclty linked with the operational and financial performance of the Company. Following are the major factors
which might affect the share price of the Company in stock echange.

1 Increase in Demand
Increase in demand of cement may result in increase in market price of bag which will contribute towards better profitability
and Earning per Share (EPS), which will ultimately increase the share price.

2 Increase in Inpunt Costs
Any varialion in major input costs (coal and slectricity) may affect the gross margins, profilability and EPS favorably or
unfavorably.

3 Currency Risk
The currency exchange rate fluctuations can have an adverse or favorable affect the markel share prices as the Company iz
involved im import.

4 Change in Government Policies
Any changs in Government policies related to cement sector may affect the share price of the Company favorably or
unfavorably.

A 10 % imerease / decrease in share price of the Company would have the following mpact on its Markel Capitalizaiion:

Share Price Sensitivity Tmpact on Market Capitalization(Rs. Million)
£10% +800
-10% -800
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Mo, of Shareholders

Having Shares

Tatal Shares Held

831
585
1426
1756
G604
272
153
116

ml-lw_dql—l-ll-ll-ll-imwmmw.hm
W = B O =) WA R T Dl OO e OB

o e T I T R i N el S I S R VE R R e T TR T R R S R R e 1

To

1 100 32826
101 500 201305
501 1000 937861
1001 2000 43570459
5001 10000 4523888
10001 15400 3310304
15001 20000 2778144
20001 25000 2681153
25001 30000 2710423
30001 35000 1351728
35001 40000 1484065
40001 45000 9765950
45001 50000 2933177
50001 55000 18989322
55001 &0000 1810289
60001 £5000 933419
65001 70000 1163227
70001 75000 1316470
75001 80000 941173
0001 85000 911700
85001 90000 615088
90001 95000 648075
95001 100000 35888638
100001 105000 1558886
105001 110000 E57844
110001 115000 676451
115001 120000 467450
120001 125000 983750
125001 130000 254000
130001 135000 261001
135001 140000 139250
145001 150000 e00000
150001 155000 911808
155001 160000 472015
160001 165000 165000
165001 170000 170000
170001 175000 342000
175001 180000 538750
150001 185000 221000
185001 180000 SEESEL
190001 155000 3B5003
195001 200000 1800000
200001 205000 202000
205001 210000 210000
215001 220000 216000
220001 225000 #98442
225001 230000 679600
230001 235000 232500
235001 240000 715375
245001 250000 749375
255001 260000 259000
273001 230000 275500
285001 230000 5742328
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Having Shares

Ma. of Shareholders “ Total Shares Held

3 295001 200000 S00000
1 310001 315000 215000
1 315001 320000 320000
2 320001 325000 647000
1 330001 335000 332279
1 350001 355000 355000
2 360001 265000 T25388
1 370001 375000 374500
2 375001 380000 T56000
4 395001 400000 1598500
1 435001 440000 438500
4 440001 445000 1774000
2 445001 450000 896040
Fi 450001 455000 305023
1 455001 460000 A56000
1 470001 475000 470400
1 495001 500000 500000
1 520001 525000 523323
1 570001 575000 572544
1 530001 585000 584500
1 585001 600000 600000
1 645001 650000 650000
1 680001 685000 685000
1 E25001 F00000 F00000
1 700001 705000 F03500
2 710001 715000 1428000
1 830001 835000 8432500
1 EEDOO1 EES000 BEB2500
1 935001 240000 938950
3 8995001 1000000 2895800
1 1035001 1040000 1035933
1 1175001 1180000 1176500
1 1195001 1200000 1200000
1 1245001 1250000 1250000
1 1275001 1280000 1277500
1 1530001 1535000 1593375
1 2110001 2115000 2110500
1 2215001 2220000 2220000
1 2285001 2270000 2268052
1 2335001 2340000 2337500
1 2470001 2475000 2474000
1 2560001 2665000 2660500
1 2715001 2720000 2716800
1 1955001 2960000 2960000
1 3340001 3345000 3342500
1 3425001 3430000 3429870
1 3685001 3690000 3686016
1 43295001 4300000 4298500
1 4630001 4695000 4534000
1 4715001 4720000 4715500
1 4915001 45920000 4915245
1 5080001 5085000 5081000
1 5565001 5570000 5569817
1 7590001 7595000 1591805
2 10435001 10500000 208937000
1 11605001 11610000 11608327
1 15330001 15335000 15334697
1 30980001 30985000 30932238




Ma. of Shareholders

Having Shares

To e e Hee
FroiT Q

1 31175001 31180000 31179353
1 35520001 35525000 35520314
1 35890001 35895000 15892193
1 47065001 47070000 AT06E04E
1 47150001 47155000 47151411
1 56620001 S6635000 56682871
1 59910001 59915000 59910573
1 69765001 63770000 B9768042
1 75415001 75420000 75416810
6381 Total 694800000
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As At June 30, 2024

Particulars

DIRECTC EQ & CHILDREN
BANKES, DFI & NBF|
INSURANCE COMPAMIES
MUTLIAL FUNDS

GEDERAL PUBLIC

GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGM)
OTHERS

FOREIGM CO

Shareholders Categories

Directors, CEQ, their Spouses And Minor Childern

M 1r2n Khan

®r, Momin Qamar

®ir sal Karnran Khan
mr. Qasim Khan

Birs. Samina Kamran

Mr. Pervaiz Ahmad Ehan
Mir. Omar Naeem

Birs. & Acrmin {W Vi, Momin Camar

Shareholders Shares held Percentage

44 .47

0.33

10,101 968
26,315

694,800,000

Mo. of Shares held

75,416, 810
73,197,913

210,573




As At June 30, 2024

Shareholders Categories No. bf Shares Held

Directors, CED, their Spouses And Minor Childern

individuals
Foreign 10,100,968
Foregin Companies 714.000

654,800,000

The CEQ, Directors, Cfo, Head of Internal Auditors, Company Secretary [including their spouses and minor Childern) executed the following transactions in the
shares of the Company during the financial year ended June 30, 2024

Furchase C Sales Others & Gift Out

Kamran KEhamn 200000

asim Khan 2,110,500
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SRRy

Proxy Form

IMPORTANT
Instruments of Proxy will nol be considered Regiztared Foimf
as valid unless deposited or received ot the Purﬁcipu nt ID No. &
Company's Registered Office ol 63-A Sher
afe MNo.
Ehan Rood, Lahora Cantt not later than 48
hours bafora the time of holding tha Mo. of Shares Held.
maating.
1/ we & of
__________________________________________________________________ baing o member of Flying
Cement Compoany Limited and holder of _ e Shores do hereby authorize = T

acnother member of the company as myll’our proxy to attend and vote for me fus

and on my four behalf at the 31st Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday 24th

October 2024 at 09:00 hours or udjmfmment tharaof.

Pleasc affix

Rupeas Five

Signature Revenue stamp
Witnesses:
1Signature: 1Signature:
MNamae: Marme:
Addrass: Address:
CHNIC or Passport CHNIC or Passport

Dated 2024.
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AFFIX
CORRECT

POSTAGE

The Company Secretary,

Flying Cement Company Limited
63-A Sher Khan Road,
Lahore Cantt. Pakistan
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Flying Cement Company Limited

LANDLINE
+92-42-36674301-5 Lines

FAX
+92-42-36660693

ADDRESS

63-A Sher Khdn Road,
Lahore Cantt

MAIL
info@flyingcement.com

WEBSITE
www.flyingcement.com



